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Chairman’s Statement 3 i # 3

On behalf of the Board of directors, I present the
annual report of Winfoong International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2011.
[

FINANCIAL RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded

consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$22.8 million.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend

the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS,
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

During the year, the Group continued to engage in property related
business and provision of horticultural services. The decrease in
turnover was mainly due to the decrease in revenue from the sale

of properties.

The Group recorded loss for the year of approximately HK$22.8
million. Loss from operating activities has decreased by 29%
mainly due to the one-off expenses incurred for the settlement
arrangements with the purchasers of the Group's properties in the
year (“Settlement Arrangements”) that were recognised in the
year 2010. Operating expenses of the current year was after the
professional fees of approximately HK$15.5 million incurred for
the Settlement Arrangements and settlement of the dispute with

a contractor of the redevelopment project of a subsidiary.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i $#t 3

The change in segment results was mainly due to the gain on

disposal of subsidiaries in the year 2010.

The Company remains confident in the Hong Kong property
market, the prestigious location and the superior quality of the

Group development properties.

The net asset value of the Group per share as at 31 December
2011 was approximately HK$0.14 (2010: HK$0.15) based on the
2,631,652,084 (2010: 2,631,652,084) shares issued.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a total of 33 employees.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

All the Group's funding and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. There is no
significant change in respect of treasury and financing policies
from the information disclosed in the Group's latest annual report.
The Group's monetary assets and liabilities are denominated and
the Group conducts its business transactions principally in Hong
Kong dollars. The exchange rate risk of the Group is not considered
significant, no financial instruments for hedging purpose are

employed.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i # 3

As at 31 December 2011, the outstanding bank loan amounted
approximately HK$0.2 million (2010: HK$0.4 million). This bank
facility was denominated in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured and
arranged on a floating rate basis. The year end gearing ratio based
on bank borrowings less pledged bank deposits to total equity was
0% (2010: 0%). The Group’'s working capital requirements are
funded by bank deposits.

The following is the maturity profile of the Group's bank borrowing
as of 31 December 2011:

Within 1 year 100%

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my colleagues
on the Board and the staff members of the Group for their strong
support and valuable contribution.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman
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Year ended 31 December 2011 #%# - F——41 - H=+—H IF ¥

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of directors of the Company is committed to raising
the standard of corporate governance within the Group in order
to enhance the transparency in disclosure of material information.
The Board strives to implement the best practices embodied
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) where feasible and as far as

practicable.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”) in the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry by
the Company, all directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout

the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board consists of seven members who have appropriate

corporate experience.

Of the seven directors, three are non-executive. The three non-
executive directors are deemed to be independent by definition of
the Listing Rules.

Guidelines are established which specify certain material transactions
that require the Board's approval which include mergers and

acquisitions, divestments and major capital expenditure.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs
of the Company and the Group. Apart from its statutory duties,
the Board reviews and approves the Company’s and the Group’s
strategic plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions, annual business plans, reviews the financial
performance of the Company and the Group and evaluates the

performance and compensation of senior management personnel.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board has separate and independent access to management
and the company secretary. Management provides the Board with
reports of the Company'’s and the Group's performance, financial
position and prospects, and these are reviewed by the Board at
Board meeting. Directors may obtain independent professional
advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company’s and the
Group’s expense.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick is both the
chairman of the Board as well as the Group's chief executive
officer ("CEQ")/managing director. Given the size and that the
Company’s and the Group’s current business operations and
administration have been relatively stable and straightforward, the
Board is satisfied that one person is able to effectively discharge
the duties of both positions. However, going forward, the Board
will review from time to time the need to separate the roles of the
chairman and the CEO if the situation warrants it.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Board has not established a nomination committee. However,
if the need arises, the Board as a whole, will decide on the
nomination and appointment of new directors.

The Board considers the professional background and experience
of the candidates recommended by individual directors and meets
to discuss the nominations and if appropriate, propose for the
appointment of the candidates as directors.

Details of the directors’ qualifications, directorships and other
particulars are set out on page 27.

Under Code A.4.2, every director should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. The Company's
Bye-law 87(1) states that the chairman of the Board and/or
the managing director of the Company shall not be subject to
retirement by rotation and shall not be counted in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year. In the opinion of
the Board, the continuity of leadership role of the chairman is
important for the stability of the Company and is considered
beneficial to the growth of the Company. The Board is of the view
that the chairman should not be subject to retirement by rotation
at the present time.

HAE ()

ERgUHoRRBUMEBERERARW
E-EHERNEFEREARFLAKEZ
=B UHBRARAMRZRE  ZFREH
EEERNEFTCERNEN ESAET
HBERIBVEXER  BRAAREAR
ANER B I

o

MW BAT B

RIBETAFEA21E TRERTHRARZBE
EEMED R EHE— AT - EREE
ERREFEELIR  REAEE ZITBAAE
(TTB#EH ) EFEEE - ERARAR
AEBREAEHLEZRBRITREERY
RELEH BEFSEMENH—BALE
MEITMERL 2 BE - AT REKRK
EEgR THRNERERBRR TR EERT
BRHIBENRZEE °

E2 5007
EERUMRIRAZES - AT BB
BE EFCEENMRERAREAHE
==

EFeEREAMNEFHEBZREAZERE
BERER  URBTERIRZFRENRE
BZEEZFHERBEARESZ (HWESR) -

BEER EERBULEMTEZFBHRR
B27H -

REBTFTAFAL2G BREFARKIE=F
WESE—KR - AREZARMAIES7(1) K
S BFEEEGIRENRRARTNEEE
KEGARESRINETREEEAYE
RTAEHEERN -EFERR EETFEE
LHeHARRREEMENHEESZ - AW
BRANARAEBER EFERR
FREHARESEE -

Annual Report 2011 —F——4F4ER



Corporate Governance Report 3% i %

Year ended 31 December 2011 #%# - F——41 - H=+—H IF ¥

BOARD MEMBERSHIP (CONTINUED)

Under Code A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. Non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term although
they are subject to retirement and rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting. Under the Company’'s Bye-laws, except
for the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company, each director is effectively appointed under a term of
not more than three years.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Employees (including directors) are remunerated according
to their performance and working experience with reference
to prevailing market conditions. On top of basic salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options may by granted to eligible
employee by reference to the individual's performance. In
addition, the Group also provides social security benefits to its
staff such as mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong.

Under Code B.1, a remuneration committee should be established
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authority and duties. A majority of the members of the
remuneration committee should be independent non-executive
directors.

The Board has not established a remuneration committee. The
Board conducts an informal assessment of the individual director’s
contribution. No director decides his or her own remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors. All of the committee members have financial
management experience.

The audit committee has full access to and co-operation of the
management. The committee also has discretion to invite any
director or executive officer to attend its meetings and is assured
of adequate resources to enable it to discharge its function
properly. CCIF CPA Limited, the external auditor has unrestricted
access to the audit committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The audit committee meets periodically with management and the

auditors of the Company to discuss and review:

(@)  the annual and interim financial statements to shareholders

before submission to the Board for adoption;

(b)  the Company’s and Group’s accounting policies and system
of internal controls;

(c) the audit plan of the Company’s external and internal

auditors;

(d) the results of the external and internal auditors’ examination
and their evaluation of the Company’s and the Group's

internal control system;
(e)  the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

(f)  the assistance given by the Company’s and the Group's
officers to the external and internal auditors; and

(@) interested person transactions.

Under Code C.3.3, the audit committee should have the duties
to be primary responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of

resignation or dismissal of that auditor.

The recommendation on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor of the Company is made by the Board to

the audit committee for approval.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT BOARD AND HWPEFTRELRBRATERILE
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS i B

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis during the year to FRESETHRTEE  BRAAQFTRA
review the Company’s and the Group's operations and financial EBRERMBEE EFHEEEFESY
results. Details of attendance of the directors at the Board HREZZESRRAIMETHT o

meetings and audit committee meetings are as follows.

Board Audit committee
By ENEES
Number of Number of
meetings  Attendance meetings  Attendance

EERY R SERY HERE

Executive directors BTES
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick B 1" 11 2 N/A
(Chairman of the Board) (E52xR) TER
Cheong Kim Pong B 1" 6 2 N/A
NEA
Cheong Sim Eng oS 11 8 2 N/A
NER
Cheong Hooi Kheng (Note 1) ER () 11 - 2 N/A
NER
Independent non-executive directors BV FHITES
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BROLE 11 3 2 2
(Chairman of audit committee) (BRZEE2XR)
Leung Wing Ning RxE 11 3 2 2
Kwik Sam Aik (Note 1) =0 (MzE1) 11 - 2 -
Former independent non-executive BB FHTES
directors
Kan Fook Yee (Note 2) fE1aga (s 2) 11 3 2 1
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic (Note 3) REB(MFE3) 11 3 2 1
Former non-executive director AFHITES
Lim Ghee (Note 3) A E)) 1 - 2 N/A
NEH
Notes: BT
1 Ms. Cheong and Mr. Kwik were appointed as executive director and 1 ELTRBEERZT——FRA=-+MNAS
independent non-executive director, respectively, on 24 May 2011. PIEZEARITEE LB IIERTES -
2 Mr. Kan resigned on 20 April 2011. 2 EEER—T——FHAZ+HEHE -
3 Mr. Lai and Madam Lim retired on 24 May 2011. 3 REERMEUETR -ZE——FHEA-+MAR

£ -
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2011, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at the date and of the Group's results
and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared
on the going concern basis in accordance with the statutory
requirements and accounting standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page
31.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2011, the auditor of the

Company and its subsidiaries would receive approximately
HK$420,000 (2010: HK$480,000) for audit and audit related
services, nil (2010: HK$nil) for tax services and HK$60,000 (2010:
HK$77,000) for other services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of
internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasizes on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk
exposure. The Group's system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure

in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that,
based on information furnished to it and on its own observations,

the present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the

Group's performance by the audit committee and the Board.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and is of the view that the system
of internal control adopted for the year ended 31 December
2011 is sound and is effective to safeguard the interests of the

shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.
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The directors herein present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company consists of investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 14 the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
34 to 133.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend

the payment of a final dividend.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out

below.
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RESULTS E

Year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=1t-HLEFE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ZE--F ZZ-TF ZTENF ZZT/\F —ZZTLF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL FEL FEL TEL

Turnover EEE 46,721 376,498 35,667 48533 29,339
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBiAn (B518), /& F (22,825)  (19,496) 85,814 34290 (311,249)
Income tax (expense)/credit FiisH () /B% - - (144) 5,505 (1,021)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER)/&F (22,825)  (19,496) 85,670 39,795  (312,270)
Attributable to: JE{G -
Equity shareholders of KARERFEA

the Company (22,825)  (19,496) 85,670 39,795 (312,270)
Non-controlling interests R - - - - -

(22,825) (19,496) 85,670 39,795 (312,270)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EE  BENRFERES

As at 31 December
R+ZR=1+—H

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—2--F “T-3F "ITAE “IR\E CBTLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TER AR TER TER

Total assets mEE 397,048 753,688 717,697 460,849 449,979
Total liabilities gaiE (25,394)  (361,409)  (297,636)  (141,065)  (169,330)

371,654 392,279 420,061 319,784 280,649

Equity attributable to equity ARTEREEA
shareholders of the Company [E(hER 371,654 392,279 420,061 319,784 280,649
Non-controlling interests JERR R LSS - _ _ _ _

371,654 392,279 420,061 319,784 280,649
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 22 to

the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st December 2011, the Company's reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to
approximately HK$129,013,000 (2010: HK$140,829,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately HK$105,000 (2010: HK$103,000).

Dl i ¢
AEHETEELE
113 °

FHIE NI IR

JBe AR
ERARATRA S
BB REM 22 -

HEEREY A

i S D B i
ARTZARMAKERE AP MR E
AR T AR L ) P B R SR S T T
2 BB -

o i
FRARRRAEEZ HERDFERNH
BRENE 2 REAREEDE -

W 23 O i i
R=F——#+=A=1+—R REEFE

—NAN—FRRE(BERD FTEZARTZ
Al R #4945 129,013,000 8 T ( —F—
T4 1 140,829,000787T) °

B
FRARNEBEER/RAH105,00087T
(ZZ—Z4 :103,000/87T) °
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 92% (2010: accounted for less than
30%) of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 26%.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
55% (2010: accounted for 94%) of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 19% (2010: 79%).

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates, nor those shareholders which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had

any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report were:—

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:-

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick

Cheong Kim Pong

Cheong Sim Eng

Cheong Hooi Kheng (appointed on 24 May 2011)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:-
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

Leung Wing Ning

Kwik Sam Aik (appointed on 24 May 2011)

Kan Fook Yee (resigned on 20 April 2011)

Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic (retired on 24 May 2011)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:-
Lim Ghee (retired on 24 May 2011)
Cheong Hooi Kheng (alternate to Madam Lim Ghee,

appointed as executive director on 24 May 2011)

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws,
Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Chan Yee Hoi, Robert and Leung Wing
Ning will retire. Mr. Cheong Kim Pong, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election as executive director and Messrs. Chan
Yee Hoi, Robert and Leung Wing Ning, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as independent non-executive directors
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all of
them to be independent.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B (1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

During the year, Mr. Cheong Sim Eng entered into a service
contract with a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
may be terminated by either party by written notice of not less
than one month. Mr. Cheong’s monthly salary was HK$101,282
and he may also receive a discretionary bonus which was to
be determined by the Board. The amount of remuneration was
determined with reference to his experience and duties as well
as the prevailing market conditions. The service contract was
terminated during the year.

During the year, Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng entered into a service
contract with a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
may be terminated by either party by written notice of not less
than one month. Ms. Cheong’s monthly salary is HK$87,950
and she may also receive a discretionary bonus which is to be
determined by the Board. The amount of remuneration was
determined with reference to her experience and duties as well as
the prevailing market conditions.

Details of directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2011 are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

#A (%)
REARB 2 ABAMAIES7 I ELFE
o BRIAESEERRKERLEFRE - RE
BERTZRRBFAG L BSELLETE
B XMBERBERANTES  RAEE
ERRKERENEER  LRBEREER
BYIFRITES -

ARBEWRE GBI IERTEERIE LT
MAIEIIBIRIEL ZFEBIIEERE - K
RARBRED BB °

HE9E B B H 58 13.51B (1) #F 3E8
WwHER

RERN - EBHREEERARNF—HE2ENE
RNAGINL—WREEL - AIRER—F U
PR—EAZEERATIURIE - EXREZ
BAFHEA101,282% 7T+ BEIFAJIREE
FEETZMBL - ZHE 2R 2K
BRBE  URERMRIMET - ZREE
HWERFARLLL -

RER BERZTERARE —H2EHE
RERTSZL— MR AL - ATl ER—TT A
PR—EAZEmMBM T AL - ExE 2
FHF £ 87,9508 0 BRI AIWHRES
BEFZWBIELL - ZME D2 ER 2 K%
RBE  AREETAMEE

HEZZT——F T _A=1+—HIEFEZE
EE 2 HIBHARUBERRME T -
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of
directors and chief executive in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations as
required to be disclosed under and within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") were as

follows:—

(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY:—

W Z R R
EHRABRITZRRAFARERET
8 MBAR T LA RFEARR—F
PO 7 ST B 18 CREBR B IR SD) 45 1E 2 AR
Baw-

A HE
RZE——F+_A=1+—H BEERTE
THRAEBRARRR R EHERRZED - 18
Mk REST - HEREBEES KRB ED
(TRBHELBEED DE XV B2RERIRI
BYWBEEGMRRIOT & —

() AL E By B A BB 2 M AT 2 —

Nature of Number of
Name of directors interest ordinary shares held Percentage
EEp ERME g EREE Aok
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick &z Interest of spouse 3,736,700 0.14%
[V (Note)
(PFH3E)
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEH Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.08%

EaSHEAA

Note:

Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling, the spouse of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick,
was interested in 3,736,700 shares, and as a result, Mr. Cheong is deemed to
be interested in these shares.

18 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED) w2 HEAR (H)
(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED (i) A—HBBAA—BHREEGRAN

CORPORATION - HONG FOK CORPORATION LIMITED ([HREE)ZBRBZ58

(“HFC”)

Number of shares

Name of directors Nature of interest of HFC held Percentage
EEnE REmEME R EEERNEE Ao
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Beneficial owner 8,639,454 1.29%
Eiee BE=HBA
Interest of spouse 1,237,830 0.19%
[ p e e
Held by controlled 104,058,803 15.78%
corporation (Note 1)
FRZEGEERFE (fFzE1)
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
Hth (Note 2)
(MtzE2)
Cheong Kim Pong Beneficial owner 2,829,178 0.43%
B EREAA
Interest of spouse 553,300 0.08%
[ p
Held by controlled 104,058,803 15.78%
corporation (Note 3)
FHRZIEGEEREE (MI7E3)
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
HAtb (Note 4)
(MtsE4)
Cheong Sim Eng Beneficial owner 76,229,300 11.56%
§EER L E=MmAA
Interest of spouse 651,700 0.10%
[T
Held by controlled 31,263,663 4.74%
corporation (Note b)
FRZEGEERE (ffg3E 5)
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
HAtb (Note 4)
(s 4)
Cheong Hooi Kheng Beneficial owner 10,569,000 1.60%
gVl BE=MBA
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
Hith (Note 6)
(Mt5E6)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION - HFC (CONTINUED)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2011:

These shares of HFC represented: (i) 72,795,140 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 11.04% of the existing issued share
capital of HFC) held by P.C. Cheong Pte. Ltd., which was 99% owned
by Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and 1% owned by Mr. Cheong Pin
Chuan, Patrick’s wife, Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling; (i) 25,116,863
shares of HFC (representing approximately 3.81% of the existing
issued share capital of HFC) held by Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd.,
which was 25% owned by Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick; and (iii)
6,146,800 shares of HFC (representing approximately 0.93% of the
existing issued share capital of HFC) held by Corporate Development
Limited, which was 25% owned by Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick's wife, Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling
had 3,397,000 shares of Hong Fok Land International Limited (“HFL").
HFL, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Holding
Limited, was interested in 20.4% of the existing issued share capital of
HFC, and HFC was interested in 36.98% of the existing share capital
of Hong Fok Land Holding Limited.

These shares of HFC represented: (i) 72,795,140 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 11.04% of the existing issued share
capital of HFC) held by K.P. Cheong Investments Pte. Ltd., which was
99% owned by Mr. Cheong Kim Pong and 1% owned by Mr. Cheong
Kim Pong'’s wife, Madam Margaret Choo; (ii) 25,116,863 shares of
HFC (representing approximately 3.81% of the existing issued share
capital of HFC) held by Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd., which was 25%
owned by Mr. Cheong Kim Pong; and (iii) 6,146,800 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 0.93% of the existing issued share capital
of HFC) held by Corporate Development Limited, which was 25%
owned by Mr. Cheong Kim Pong.

Each of Mr. Cheong Sim Eng and Mr. Cheong Kim Pong had interests
in the issued share capital of HFC, which in turn held 36.98% in
the existing issued share capital of Hong Fok Land Holding Limited,
and Hong Fok Land Holding Limited was interested in 20.4% of the
existing issued share capital of HFC.

20 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

o i ()
R BB 8 28 5 — M R 2 Ay 2
U AT ()

(i)

BT -

WZZ——F+-A=+—H:

ZEBBEERMBER : (I)A P.C.
Cheong Pte. Ltd. % 2 72,795,140 %
BREERO(EREBEXBRAD BT
FRAKI11.04%) » HARERB S EHEA
99% - 1% AIREM B L E 2 EFH
#¥ A ¢ (i) B Goodyear Realty
Co. Pte. Ltd.##& 225,116,863 %%
BEERMD(EBREXREGERITR
NHI381%) EpEMEEERHR
25% : M (iiijf Corporate Development
Limited# %5 26,146,800 18 % 18 &

RHEBBEERBEBITRELY
0.93%) * HA BB L EHEA 25% °

EMBREECETRARZLIESR
Hong Fok Land International Limited
([HFL1)3,397,000/& %t ° HFL:E B E
&K B A7 Hong Fok Land Holding
Limited R BREXEBREBEEEHITRA
20.4%FHEEEZ - BIEEZRMAHong
Fok Land Holding Limited 3R A 2 %77
M7 36.98% kA AER

ZEBBEEROEER  ()BK.P.
Cheong Investments Pte. Ltd. % H&
272,795,140 B @ B 2R D (5%
BEXRBEEITRAL11.04%) -
HEPESEXREREIO%  KEBREL
T(ESEEEZETFIER1% 5 (i) @
Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd. B 2
25,116,863 BB EXKRH (EBEE
¥R ECHTRALN381%) » HhiE
& IE S E A 25% ¢ K (iii) B3 Corporate
Development Limited# 75 26,146,800
BREEERN(EREEERADE
TIRAK0.93%)  HhESEEEHE
H25% °

BHRETERBSBELESENE
EEBITRATHHEE R MBREEX
# Hong Fok Land Holding Limited 3
BEBETRAFFEAE36.98% s+ M
Hong Fok Land Holding Limited /%
BEXEBOEITIRAN20.4% R B E

g

fm

i i
i



Directors’ Report 3 3¢ € 3t 1

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION - HFC (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

5. These shares of HFC represented: (i) 25,116,863 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 3.81% of the existing issued share capital
of HFC) held by Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd., which was 25% owned
by Mr. Cheong Sim Eng; and (ii) 6,146,800 shares of HFC (representing
approximately 0.93% of the existing issued share capital of HFC) held
by Corporate Development Limited, which was 25% owned by Mr.

Cheong Sim Eng.

6. Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng had 2,000,000 shares of HFL. HFL, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Holding Limited, was
interested in 20.4% of the existing issued share capital of HFC; and
HFC was interested in 36.98% of the existing share capital of Hong
Fok Land Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, taken to be interested
or deemed to have any other interests or short positions in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, that were required to be entered into
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

w2 HEAR (H)
(i) A—HBEAFR—BREEIRBDZ
I8 (40)

BT - (48)

5. ZEBBEERMEBER: ()H
Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd. &
225,116,863 1% 15 18 & 2 R 5 (16 %
BEERBEHEITHRALNI8I%)
HpE L EERB25% : K(i)A
Corporate Development Limited &
26,146,800 IR BB £ ) (1B E
¥R EEEHTREL0.93%) - HhE
BE S 25% ©

6. EEMLZ AN F L 2,000,000 %%
5 - HFL:B A E 2 & M8 2 5 Hong Fok
Land Holding Limited B2 E %1
BEEITRA24%FHEEEZ M
HEEE XA Hong Fok Land Holding
Limited R G AR A 36.98% A # o

BEXHEEEN RZBE——F+=A
=t—H BREEFIBEEIIEXVIHBET
R8nEl MEARRZEERIZITHRA
BWEESIRIENARRRERE QT 2R
-~ HERD REFD  BEAEEMEER
FORBMABARARRIRIEEZ M E GROIE
352 (P17 B 2 & e it i 50 85 S AR I Bt 52 P
TR AR E ST A R R AN ) R B AZ P
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 15 April 2002 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up options
at nil consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options vest from the date of grant and are then exercisable within
a period of not more than ten years. Each option gives the holder

the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
interests” and "“Share option schemes” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements, there
were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted at the end of year or at any time
during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions between the Group and parties regarded
as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements. One of these
transactions also constituted “Connected Transaction” under the

Listing Rules as identified below.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 16 November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with HFC for the Group to sell and HFC to purchase the
Group's interest in Goldease Investments Limited at the cash
consideration of S$10,150,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$56,434,000). The transaction was completed on 25 January
2010. Further details of the transaction were disclosed in note
26(c)(iii) to the financial statements. The disclosure and approval

requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

At 31 December 2011, interests of directors in competing

business of the Group were as follows:

B 8 3% 5

RZBZAFE+—A+-A AEEEBRE
BELHE  BUAEFELE  M%E
FEEBBE AEEN Goldease Investment
Limited 2 #z - H&MR(E 10,150,000 %7
hny T (HH 55 7 4956,434,0008 70 ) ° Z R
SER-_ZE—ZETF-—HA=-+HABTK B
MR SE— 2 BE N MG W® R M i
26(c) (iii) o ERAI T ZHERIERTE
WiBSF o

AR BT R A

RZEB——F+_A=+—H BEZEREX
SEBRHF ZEBETHE 2RI T

Name of Nature of
Name of directors company competing business Nature of interest
Y NEER BREB2ME EEtE
Cheong Kim Pong HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
B BREE EEEES) REZERRR
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
E e BREE EIEEES) REZERRR
HFL Property-related business As a director and the
HFL ESE RS spouse of a shareholder
REERRR ZBE
Cheong Sim Eng HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
RS BREE EIEEES) REZERRR
Cheong Hooi Kheng HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
BB BREX ESEE S REERRE
HFL Property-related business As a director and shareholder
HFL ESEE S REERRE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND EX-Y 'S Y BN PG £+

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
At 31 December 2011, the following persons (not being directors RZZE——F+ZRA=+—8" TI AL

or chief executive of the Company) had an interest in the following (KRBEFHREZTHRABRIN RBER
long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company AR IR B 5 I A E 1401 55 336 16 2 33 7E P i
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 B ERMATR SN AR T 2 B D sk i B AR

of the SFO. Mz BEPHEERER -
Capacity Number of shares held Percentage
Name of shareholder RRA®E #E FrsRnEE Aatt
HFC BEEX Held by controlled corporation 1,652,910,365 62.81%
BRI EERE (Note 1)
GEAD
First Strategy Investments Limited First Strategy Investments Limited Beneficial owner 628,746,775 23.89%
EREEA
HFL HFL Held by controlled corporation 628,746,775 23.89%
BB ERRE (Note 2)
(Fzt2)
Barragan Trading Corp. Barragan Trading Corp. Beneficial owner 285,312,566 10.84%
ERAEA
Praise Time Co Limited Praise Time Co Limited Beneficial owner 136,000,000 517%
ERAEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1

HFC was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Corporation (H.K.) Limited (“"HFCHK"), did in the issued
share capital of the Company by virtue of HFC's interest in HFCHK. HFCHK
was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Enterprises Limited (“HFE"), did in the issued share
capital of the Company by virtue of HFCHK's interest in HFE. HFE was
deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned subsidiary,
Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC Cayman”), did in the issued share capital
of the Company by virtue of HFE's interest in HFC Cayman. HFC Cayman
was directly interested in 976,720,587 shares of the Company. In addition,
HFCHK was directly interested in 47,443,003 shares of the Company. HFCHK
beneficially owned approximately 36.98% of the issued share capital of
HFL and was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as HFL did in
628,746,775 shares of the Company.

HFL was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Asia Limited (“HFLA"), did in the share capital of
the Company by virtue of HFL's interests in HFLA. HFLA was deemed to have
the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned subsidiary, First Strategy
Investments Limited, did in the issued share capital of the Company by virtue

of HFLA's interest in First Strategy Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as

having an interest or short position in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as at 31 December 2011.

FRBe A B Fofib A L 2 S (%)

e

(1)

(2)

HRBEEERAHZENBRARISEERE(E
BIERDNBNRBEERS]) s 08
BEERAARBBITREAMER 2 ER#ER
WRABMBEEEBBMEAERR - AN%
BEEEABBH2EMBRARERESER
ARENBREBES ) 2  SUREEXEER
ARRBEITRAFHEE 2 BEREEWNIE RE
WRBESBAEER - AERBRESHEH
2 & i B /A7 Hong Fok Corporation Limited
([HFC Caymanl) 2 #% - HUBBESHAR
AIBBITRAFES 2 BERER MR RE HFC
CaymanFi# B &4HR - HFC Cayman E#
B AR 7F]976,720,687 AR 19 2 BERS o LN -
BIREXBEEEESR AR F47,443,003 %
B ziEzm - BREEEBERBAHFLLZ
BT A43698%  MBREEERER
628,746,775 R AR BIRM FTHE 2 BR Em
WARAEHFLATEA SR -

AR HFLIFEBEE 2 &N B2 R Hong Fok Land
Asia Limited (THFLA) Z#% » SBIHFLRAZR
RABBITRAMEAZEREZHE AR
HFLAFT#E B &R - B HFLAR A2 &M
B2 7] First Strategy Investments Limited 2
o WMHFLARA QAR B BEITRARES 2
BB EZS AR AL First Strategy Investments
Limited FT#EHE & HE °

BEXFREESN AT —F+=f
S8 RERARTREBS RS D)
$336 2 AR 2 BRMAEE B
A TRART 2 R 5 RANBIR 15 b
BHSAR -
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There was no significant event subsequent to 31 December 2011.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the year
and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITORS
CCIF CPA Limited shall retire as auditors of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2012
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies %3¢ & i S 45 B\ B i /¢

DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, aged 62, is the chairman and
managing director of the Company. Mr. Cheong is a member of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in 1991 and was appointed a director of the Company in
1996. He has over 39 years' experience in property development.
He is a director of the Company’s substantial shareholder, Hong
Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC"), the shares of which are listed on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX").

Mr. Cheong Kim Pong, aged 69, is an executive director of
the Company. Mr. Cheong attended Civil Engineering at The
Technical College in Australia. He joined the Group in 1991 and
was appointed a director of the Company in 1996. He has over
48 years' experience in construction management and real estate
development. He is a director of the Company’s substantial
shareholder, HFC.

Mr. Cheong Sim Eng, aged 51, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheong graduated from the Chaminade University
of Honolulu with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He joined the Group
in 1991 and was appointed a director of the Company in 1996. He
has over 26 years' experience in the construction industry. He is a
director of the Company’s substantial shareholder, HFC.

Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, aged 59, is an executive director of
the Company. Ms. Cheong holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Business Administration from the California State University,
Hayward and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Chaminade University of Honolulu. She joined the Group in
1991 and was appointed a non-executive director of the Company,
alternate to Madam Lim Ghee, in 2005 and an executive director of
the Company in May 2011. She has over 30 years' experience in
the construction industry. She is a director of HFC, the Company’s
substantial shareholder, and KTL Global Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the SGX.

Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and
Cheong Sim Eng and Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng are brothers and
sister.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, aged 62, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of
the Company. He joined the Group and was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
of Social Science degree. He has over 32 years’ experience
in corporate restructuring, corporate finance, capital markets,
direct investment and asset management. Mr. Chan held senior
positions in various American banks in Hong Kong and fund
management companies.

Mr. Leung Wing Ning, aged 64, is an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of the Company.
He joined the Group and was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2009. He was educated
at Stanford University, California and New York University, New
York where he obtained a Bachelor of Science (Mechanical
Engineering) and an Master of Business Administration degree
respectively. He has over 30 years' experience in senior
management positions in international trades and in banking and
finance. He retired from Hang Seng Bank Limited in 2007. He is
an independent non-executive director of Wing On International
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwik Sam Aik, aged 60, is an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of the Company.
He joined the Group and was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in May 2011. He graduated
from the University of Singapore with a Bachelor of Accountancy
degree. He has held various senior positions with international
banks in Hong Kong, Singapore and China. He has over 25 years
of experience in banking, covering different areas including
commercial and international banking, corporate and investment
banking and capital markets.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc, aged 39, is the director of the

business development division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of Chicago
Graduate School of Business. He joined the Group in 2000 and
has over 3 years' experience in the merchant banking field and 11

years' experience in business development.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hian, Howard, aged 37, is the director of the
project management division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America. He joined
the Group in 2004 and has over 3 years’ experience in the private

equity field and 7 years’ experience in project management.

Messrs. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc and Cheong Tze Hian, Howard

are the sons of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng, aged 57, is the senior manager of
the property management division of the Group. Ms. Cheong
graduated from Armstrong College of Berkeley in the United
States of America with a Bachelor of Science degree. She
joined the Group in 1993 and has over 33 years' experience in
the planning, organising and control of office administration and

personnel management.

Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng is the sister of Messrs. Cheong Kim
Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Cheong Sim Eng and Ms.
Cheong Hooi Kheng.

Mr. Cheong Aik Yen, Roy, aged 46, is the senior manager of
business promotion of the Group. Mr. Cheong graduated from the
Western New England College in Massachusetts with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering. He joined the Group
in 2002 and has 2 years’ experience in the merchant banking field.

Mr. Cheong is the son of Mr. Cheong Kim Pong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Ho Chi Leung, Tony, aged 53, is the project manager of

the property development division of the Group. Mr. Ho holds
a Bachelor degree of Building Surveying from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Bachelor degree of General Studies
from The Open University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in
2011 and has over 30 years' experience in construction and project
management of large scale construction projects in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, Macau, Canada and USA.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 18 v 4% $ bl it 3

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED

34/F The Lee Gardens
33 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF WINFOONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winfoong
International Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group”) set out on pages 34 to 133, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2011, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 February 2012

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number P04911
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Consolidated Income Statement 35525 R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2011 2010
—T——F “Z-ZF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B T FEr
Turnover EEH 3 46,721 376,498
Cost of sales SHEMAR (31,379) (318,491)
Gross profit E 15,342 58,007
Other revenue H iz 4 827 713
Other net income/(loss) Hip A/ (B18) 58 4 5,148 (827)
Operating and administrative expenses BERITHAY (44,126) (89,806)
Loss from operations REFR (22,809) (31,913)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR W 27 - 12,461
Finance costs REMAK 5(a) (16) (44)
Loss before taxation BB AIEE 5 (22,825) (19,496)
Income tax expense TS 6(a) - -
Loss for the year REFE (22,825) (19,496)
Attributable to: PAT FEAG
Equity shareholders of the Company ADAEREFEA 9 (22,825) (19,496)
Non-controlling interests JEERER - -
Loss for the year EREE (22,825) (19,496)
Loss per share FhEE 10
Basic BA HK cents (0.87) &1l HK cents (0.74) 1l
Diluted &% HK cents (0.87)i&flL  HK cents (0.74) &L
The notes on pages 41 to 133 form part of these financial FAFEI133E BRI SMBERFT T —
statements. B o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income £ 4 2 Wi 22 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2011 2010
—E——F —T-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT FA&T
Loss for the year FREE _ (22,825)  (19,496)
Other comprehensive income/ FREMEEKE (EE)
(loss) for the year
(after tax and reclassification (RBREH D ERER)
adjustments)
Exchange differences on translating MEBINERG 2 EHZR -
foreign operations (net of nil tax): MEHIE 2 FEE
— Reclassification adjustments —FABHEZBINER
relating to foreign operations 2 EHOERAE
disposed of during the year - (9,386)
= (9,386)
Available-for-sale securities: net AN EES
movement in the fair value N ERE 2855
reserve (net of nil tax): A2 HEE
— Changes in fair value —FANBERZ
recognised during the year NEE 1,900 270
- Reclassification adjustments —REEEBRRZ
for amounts transferred SR ENDERE
to profit or loss — impairment —REEE (MFE4)
loss (note 4) 300 830
2,200 1,100
. 2200 1 8,286) _
Total comprehensive loss FRAZTHBELTE
for the year (20,625) (27,782)
Attributable to: BAT RELL
Equity shareholders of the RNFERFEE A
Company (20,625) (27,782)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R RS - -
Total comprehensive loss FALHEEAE
for the year (20,625) (27,782)
The notes on pages 41 to 133 form part of these financial FAME1IBEZMEBR LT B RET L —
statements. 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & M BN ML

As at 31 December 2011 i & ——4Ff - H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2011 2010
—2——F —E-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FTiET TET FAT TET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BE&EE 13 1,702 2,624
Other financial assets Hih o gt EE 15 6,950 5,050
8,652 7,674
Current assets MEEE
Inventories e 16 249,857 281,490
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H b fEURERIE 17 17,334 24,265
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BE&NMREEEY 18(a) 121,205 440,259
388,396 746,014
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables 25 REAMENRE 19 25,213 360,968
Bank borrowings, unsecured  $R1TE R (FEIXIR) 20 181 441
25,394 361,409
Net current assets REBEEFE 363,002 384,605
NET ASSETS EEFE 371,654 392,279
Capital and reserves R &
Share capital %N 22(b) 131,582 131,682
Reserves & 240,072 260,697
Total equity attributable to A2 FREFZFEA
equity shareholders il S
of the Company 371,654 392,279
Non-controlling interests  FEiRfRfEZS - -
TOTAL EQUITY mrER 371,654 392,279
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 EEGR T —_F_A-TN\BHERE
February 2012. RETIE -
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Kim Pong
Director Director
EE o
The notes on pages 41 to 133 form part of these financial FAMEZ1BEZMFERMETHBREK 2 —
statements. &5 o
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Statement of Financial Position B #5IR L F&

As at 31 December 2011 i & ——4Ff - H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2011 2010
—g——f —z-%%
Note HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e FEm FEm AT TR

Non-current assets FRBERE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIZIRE 14 1 1
Other financial assets Hip e mEE 15 6,800 4,600
6,801 4,601
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables BHREMEYKRER 17 262,978 274,973
Cash and cash equivalents Re MReFEY 18(a) 5 10
262,983 274,983
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B RAEMEMNEE 19 653 837
Net current assets MEEEFE 262,330 274,146
NET ASSETS EEFE 269,131 278,747
Capital and reserves R it
Share capital AR 22(b) 131,582 131,582
Reserves [ 137,549 147,165
TOTAL EQUITY MR 269,131 278,747

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 EFeR T —F-AZF+/\HHREERE

February 2012. T o
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Kim Pong

Director Director

BFE EE

#

The notes on pages 41 to 133 form part of these financial A EN1IBEZWEER LS BwE 2 —

statements. 28 o

pals;

Annual Report 2011 —F——4F4E#H 37



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 55 & sz B #

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARERE ARILER

Capital
redemp- Fair Non-
Share Share tion  Exchange value  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
kA FER

BE  RtEE RORE EXRE OVERE REEH # G-
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00D  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000
TR TRT TEL  TEL TR TER TR TAT TR

At 1 January 2010 RZE-%F-F-H 131,582 4,785 121 9,386 330 273857 420,061 - 420,061
Changes in equity for 2010:  —Z-SERERT
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (1949) (19,49 - (1949)
Other comprehensive EREMZE
{loss income for the year (B8)/ W& - - - (9386) 1,100 - (82%0) - (8280)
Total comprehensive ERZE
(loss}fincome for the year (BB)/ haeg - - - (9386) 1100 (1949 (27,782) - 1)
At 31 December 2010 RZF-TF
T-A=+-H 131,582 4785 121 - 1430 254,361 392,219 - 3922719
At 1 January 2011 R-E——E-F-R 131,582 4,785 121 - 1430 254361 392,279 - 392219
Changes in equity for 2011:  —E--EREEF:
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - (22825)  (22,82%) - (2282)
Other comprehensive EREMZENE
income for the year - - - - 2,200 - 2,200 - 2,200
Total comprehensive ERZE
{loss}fincome for the year (BR)/ sz - = - - 2200  (22825)  (20,625) - (2062)
At 31 December 2011 RZF——%
T-A=1-H 131,582 4,785 121 - 3630 231536 371,654 - 31,654
The notes on pages 41 to 133 from part of the financial FAIE 133 E 2B FB®RE 2 —
statements. &5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows £S5 B iR B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2011 2010
—E——F —T=-TF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BteE FBT FAT
Operating activities KR
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (/) FAELZHE 18(b) (313,194) 490,500
Tax paid BRHIA
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BAEFEWRE - -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REER (FER)FEE
operating activities REFE (313,194) 490,500
Investing activities REZH
Decrease in pledged bank deposits R B IRIRI TR - 7
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABRTEE IR (64) (134)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets & BT B EMSREIR - 3
Dividend income from available-for-sale ~ AIftH&R B A
unlisted securities Z B BWA - 304
Interest received BHFE 753 196
Net inflow of cash and cash HENBARMERE 2
equivalents in respect of ReRAEEEYD
disposal of subsidiaries MAEER 27 - 51,255
Net cash generated from RETEFESE
investing activities ZIREFEE 689 51,631
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows £S5 H£iRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT-F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BiteE FBT FAT
Financing activities RERE
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to AR EERRE
the Company’s substantial S CRA) /180
shareholders (6,273) 2,407
Repayments of over-subscription HAREBEER IS 2 B
under rights issue - (7,468)
Proceeds from new bank loans REFERITERZ
PR 5E - 180,340
Repayment of bank loans BEIFTER (260) (305,741)
Interest paid ERFLE (16) (51)
Net cash used in RETBMFEAZES
financing activities & (6549) ______ (130,513) -
Net increase in cash and ReERREEEYZ
cash equivalents EANFRE (319,054) 411,618
Cash and cash equivalents at the RENZRERES®
beginning of the year ZEY 440,259 28,641
Cash and cash equivalents attheend REXRZHERRE
of the year ZEY 18(a) 121,205 440,259
The notes on pages 41 to 133 form part of these financial FAIE 133 B 2RI FBRE 2 —
statements. &5 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Note 1(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting years reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011 comprise the Company and

its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 1(f));

- buildings (see note 1(g)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-

sale securities (see note 1(e)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

<)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial

statements:

° HKAS 24 (revised 2009)
Disclosures”

“Related Party

o Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

J HK(IFRIC) -
Liabilities with Equity Instruments”

Int 19 “Extinguishing Financial

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

HK(IFRIC) —
the Group's financial statements as these changes will

Int 19 has not yet had a material impact on

first be effective as and when the Group enters into
a relevant transaction (for example, a debt for equity

swap).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
The impacts of the developments are discussed

below:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition
of a related party. As a result, the Group has re-
assessed the identification of related parties
and concluded that the revised definition does
not have any material impact on the Group's
related party disclosures in the current and
previous periods. HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also
introduces modified disclosure requirements
for government-related entities. This does not
impact the Group because the Group is not a
government-related entity.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus
standard introduces a number of amendments
to the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.
The disclosures about the Group's financial
instruments in note 23 have been conformed
to the amended disclosure requirements.
These amendments do not have any material
impact on the classification, recognition and
measurements of the amounts recognised in the
financial statements in the current and previous

periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are

exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the

Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(e)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly

controlled entity .

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(i)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in

a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’'s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless fair value can be more reliably estimated
using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification:

(i) Held-to-maturity debt securities

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
are stated at amortised cost less impairment

losses (see note 1(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

e) Other investments in debt and equity securities

(continued)

Available-for-sale securities

Other investments in securities, being those
held for non-trading purposes, are classified
as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve, except foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised directly in profit or loss.
Dividend income from these investments is
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policy set out in note 1(r)(vi) and, where
these investments are interest-bearing, interest
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policy set out in note 1(r)(vii). When
these investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(i)), the cumulative gain or loss is

reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments

or they expire.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 1(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being

constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably determined
at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(r)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied
to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease

payments are accounted for as described in note 1(h).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

]

Other property, plant and equipment

The following properties held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair value at the date
of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation:

- buildings held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land, where the fair value of the
building could be measured separately from the
fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of

the lease (see note 1(h)).

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of reporting

period.

The other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in property revaluation reserve.

The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to

the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing

costs (see note 1(t)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

]

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the property revaluation reserve to retained

profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance

leases is depreciated over the term of lease.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives of

40 years.

- Furniture, equipment and other fixed assets are

depreciated over 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. REEFHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
h)  Leased assets h) B E

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series b 78 52 B R TE 72 49 7F 89 5 2R A

of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group REEEFABLEURN—%£

determines that the arrangement conveys a right to S EENTOLTHE ABE
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of —HERGHEBRR G2 ZIBARYE
time in return for a payment or a series of payments. RNBE—IBEE c ZIERET)

Such a determination is made based on an evaluation ERNZHAR K b E M E LT

of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless TR EZ LY EEUAEFAME

of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a g

lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group 1) THE 7 AER &
Assets that are held by the Group under leases AEERBHEHEREZE
which transfer to the Group substantially all the B mEFRBRIDER
risks and rewards of ownership are classified MEBENZHEE EAX
as being held under finance leases. Leases EEzHEAO B ARE
which do not transfer substantially all the risks - TE2EBENLD
and rewards of ownership to the Group are EfkEEENZCHEHE
classified as operating leases, with the following D ERKEERA - A
exceptions: TSN
-  property held under operating leases — (WIRBEEMENEE

that would otherwise meet the definition ZYERSRTHER
of an investment property is classified BYECEE AR
as investment property on a property- BRIz BEED SR
by-property basis and, if classified as RILEWME - MHH
investment property, is accounted for as if HARAEWDSE - AR
held under a finance lease (see note 1(f)); BRIEMEOFEE AR
and (RME10) &
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

(CONTINUED)
h)  Leased assets (continued)
(continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.

ii)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are

charged to profit or loss in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(f)) or is held for

development for sale (see note 1(j)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Impairment of assets

0

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
i)  Impairment of assets (continued) ) AW ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity i) EBERIRAGE N %
securities and other receivables (continued) B R Al K 2
(%)

EFHEETMERERE A
BATHAEE MERE

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 1(i)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 1(i)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
i)  Impairment of assets (continued) ) AWML ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity 1) FEETE R IR 75 5 14 2 7

Bl JE W I i (]

securities and other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the

(#7)

AHRERAERE - &
EERBERD - M

decrease can be linked objectively to an BRR A B E el
event occurring after the impairment loss e E B 1 18 B
was recognised, the impairment loss is ERFEHBE - AR
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal BEEEgERERE
of an impairment loss shall not result in the O - REE R R [E
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that TEEYEAERE S
which would have been determined had no BHRHEENTEFE
impairment loss been recognised in prior RERRREEIEZ
years. B e

For available-for-sale securities, the - BuUHEEZREM
cumulative loss that has been recognised = ERAFERE
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to PHRRAZRHEES
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative BEFHEEERE -
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is RiBmERER 25
the difference between the acquisition EESBERWEKAR
cost (net of any principal repayment (B EFEMASER
and amortisation) and current fair value, NG ) MIRIT A
less any impairment loss on that asset B2 Z8  BEEN
previously recognised in profit or loss. NRIZBEEREZRE

PEERHREEE -

Impairment losses recognised in profit or A HERARFHD
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity WEBBNERER
securities are not reversed through profit FAER - BTN EE
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair MBI AL - Hig
value of such assets is recognised in other ZEENFEZEM
comprehensive income. EnE R EMEEIR

R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICA]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEAEHBOR (5
(CONTINUED)
i)  Impairment of assets (continued) ) AWML ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity i) REHERIRARZE SN
securities and other receivables (continued) B R Al A K 2
(#F)

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in

profit or loss.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # % & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICi]{H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that the property, plant
and equipment (other than properties carried
at revalued amounts) may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or

value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset's carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
) Inventories
i) Horticultural services

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the standard cost basis
(which approximates the average actual cost)
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

j) Inventories (continued)
ii)  Property development
Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost and net realisable values
are determined as follows:

- Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing cost capitalised
(see note 1(t)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

62 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

1.

FEAFBOR (4)
R ED
i) YHEEE
HYEEREDHEE T

B R (T
B2 RIEE A - AR
AREFEE SR

T

FIEHEZERR
S

FEHEZERFTY
EZRABIEFRR
EZRA - BIERE
TR AR B R
MR RS TER
HtEZEBER KA
@EE - RIRLL B
ZEBERARE R
ZEERA(RME
1(1)) » AT IR R B
HErEERAET A
REEMEMEEZ
BN e



1.

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

»

k)

Inventories (continued)
ii)  Property development (continued)
- Completed property held for sale

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to be

incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

m)

n)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(g)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
o) Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to

p)

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

it)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without

realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they

will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p) Income tax (continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.

68 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

1.

EEEEralBOR (50

p)

B fBE (4)

BVRA T 18 465 R TR ST B TR A R DA
REFRZEGHHEEBNHZIN R
AT REENEUTZHE
SMESF - MARBIRAEEES
AAMBIEEERHERIAAEREZ
SRR AEIRREES g1
AEMBIEAEERE - MEEN IR
BENRELTHIARERE

- RAMREAERAER
EREYLEZ S P
WRESREH - RF
FRAEREEAR

- HEEMEEERBEM
FONREERBEME
2RIy AR —ER
TEHERA PR - T

—  BURTAR—E#B
B

- HTRBMREN B
R —ERAERRE -
BRB AR B
BREREEXREE
R EE KB - 5
FLOFE S AERA
HeHMBREEREE
REIT IR B B R
HHRER -



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BREEFHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent q) M EYER - M Rk A
liabilities £
i) Financial guarantees issued i) P BB ER

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. \Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group's policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition

of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(g)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee, that is, the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

i) Sale of properties

When properties under development are
sold, income is recognised when the property
development is completed with the relevant
occupation permit issued by the Authorities
and the significant risks and rewards of the
ownership of the properties are passed to the
buyers. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are recorded as forward sales
deposits and instalments received.

ii)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r)

Revenue recognition (continued)

iii)

iv)

vi)

vii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised at the

time when the services are rendered.

Service income
Service income is recognised when the relevant

services are rendered.

Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right

to receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the

investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

u) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICH]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

u) Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies (continued):

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICq]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

V)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated

if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 13 and 23 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to valuation of investment
properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

a)  Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant

changes from previous estimates.

b) Valuation of inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the management
performs an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and assesses

the need for write down of inventories.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

)

d)

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. Any increase or decrease in the
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts would

affect profit or loss in future years.

Current taxation and deferred taxation

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The management evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilized, the
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

3. TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are property
development, property management, property construction
and provision of horticultural services.

Turnover represents proceeds from sales of properties,
revenue from provision of property management services
and revenue from provision of horticultural services. The
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised
in turnover during the year is as follows:

3. BEH
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2011 2010

—E2——F —ZT-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FiET FiET

Gross proceeds from properties sold KB B HEYE 2 Sk IBRE 42,329 373,150

Revenue from provision of property REREDEEERE 2 Wi 527 229
management services

Revenue from provision of R EREEERSE 2 W 3,865 3,119

horticultural services
46,721 376,498
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME/ Hofb etz BN, Ol ) 3%
(LOSS)
2011 2010
—E2——F —Z=-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT FAET
Other revenue Hiug s
Interest income FLEMA
— banks —#R1T 737 231
- others —HAth - 12

Total interest income
on financial assets not
at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income from available-for-sale
unlisted securities
Others

Other net income/(loss)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Revaluation losses on buildings
Available-for-sale securities:
reclassified from equity
— on impairment
Fair value gain on transfer of investment
property to land and building held for
own use
Waiver of commission payable*

Valuation gain on investment properties
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REMEMAER S

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the property agent agreed

to waive its commission for certain sale transactions.

737 243

- 304

90 166
827 713
(1) (5)
(92) (22)
(300) (830)
50 -
5,491 -
= 30
5,148 (827)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
5. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBEw ks 4
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB ATEIEE M (GEA) ¢
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TFHET
(a) Finance costs (a) WERA
Total interest expense on LN FEFABRZ
financial liabilities not at fair CRIBEN SRS
value through profit or loss: fazE
- Interest on bank borrowings —BRRAFREE
wholly repayable within BB 2 R1T
five years BHERE 16 751
Less: Interest expense capitalised into i : ZEFWERNERL
properties under development* 2B - (707)
16 44
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 0.86% * HE-_ZT-TF+-A=1+—H1t

to 1.15% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank
borrowings, including a bank loan which contains a
repayment on demand clause, in accordance with
the agreed scheduled repayments dates set out in
the relevant loan agreement. For the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010, the interest on bank
borrowings which contain a repayment on demand
clause amounted to HK$16,000 and HK$29,000

respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETCFHE)
5. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5. BRBLwEH (4)
2011 2010
—EB——F —T-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EI K7
emoluments) (BIEEEMS)
Contributions to defined contribution FERIRFT SR
retirement plan (note 11) (BF&EET1) 135 59
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMBET 10,301 4,197
10,436 4,256
2011 2010
—EB——F —T-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
(¢c) Otheritems (¢) HAEHE
Amortisation of leasehold land T 1t g 12 12
Depreciation of EMEEEE
other fixed assets e 931 1,059
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET BN &
— audit services —E 1z 420 480
— other services — B fth Bk 7% 60 77
Operating lease charges: BEBOAT
minimum lease payments SIEALTR
— hire of plant and machinery — A AR R s 9 6
— hire of other assets (including —HAEMEE
property rentals) (BiEMZEES) 2,827 2,827
Expenses incurred for the settlement RETHERHESE
arrangements in respect of certain THEA X
sale transactions (see note 19(b)) (MF3E19(b)) - 56,547
Cost of inventories (note 16(c)) FERA (FEE16(c)) 31,379 300,734
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
6. INCOME TAX 6. Pt
a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement a)  HEERARRMZBLES :

represents:

No Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010 has been provided for as the
Group has no estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong for both years.

P A S L R 1 4F FE PO EE 8

A4 5 EARBUR T - 3 A A
HBE-T——FR-T-TF
+=A=+—BIEERZEBH
BB -

b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss b) R R B Gl S 2 B P S B
at the applicable tax rates: £t BB
2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Loss before taxation PRI AT EE (22,825) (19,496)
Notional tax on loss before FRIAIEE  BRMIA
taxation, calculated at the rates REMRAERER
applicable to profits in the E A2 R E
jurisdictions concerned (3,766) (3,217)
Tax effect of non-deductible TR ER 2%
expenses e 567 8,077
Tax effect of non-taxable income RPN R E (130) (2,647)
Tax effect of unused tax losses KRR 2 AR IBEE
not recognised B E 3,444 719
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses AN FE)HBEFE ZHIA
utilised this year BRI E (68) (6,211)
Others Hity (47) 3,279
Actual tax expense ERHERS - -
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7.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTiAHE)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. WA
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 161 of RBEEBRATEOE 161 (REECES
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: T -
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2011
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Er = —E—-F
B2HS REMRIE MERA  RIGHEIAS GH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TET Thx
Executive directors: BITEE:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick BEng - 1,485 - - 1,485
Cheong Kim Pong ek - - - - -
Cheong Sim Eng B - 203 - 2 205
Cheong Hooi Kheng (appointed EER(R=T——F
on 24 May 2011) RAZ+NBEZT) - 440 - 4 444
Independent non-executive directors: BV IFHI{TESE
Kan Fook Yee [resigned on 22 BRHB (RN =%
April 2011) ME=-+-REf) 40 - - - 40
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic PEBR(R-F—F
(retired on 24 May 2011) BAZTEARE) - = - - -
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert ROV 130 - - - 130
Leung Wing Ning PKE 130 - - - 130
Kwik Sam Aik (appointed D= (R=T——F
on 24 May 2011) AAZ+HNBEZT) 87 - - - 87
Non-executive directors: FHITES
Lim Ghee (retired mE(RZT——F
on 24 May 2011) AA=TMARE) - - - - -
Cheong Hooi Kheng* (appointedas ~ EXM* (W= ——F
executive director on 24 May 2011)  RAZTNAEZE
RBITES) - = S - -
387 2,128 - 6 2,521
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. W4 ()
(CONTINUED)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2010
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
He 2K %%
Bxig RENFE B RIKGEIER =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR TAL TAL TEL
Executive directors: BITEE
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Ene - 1,658 - - 1,658
Cheong Kim Pong Tk - - - - -
Cheong Sim Eng B - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B JEH{TES
Kan Fook Yee Bt
(resigned on 22 April 2011) (RZF—%
MA-+=REA) 120 - - - 120
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic PER
(retired on 24 May 2011) (R_T—F
BAZTEARE) 120 - - - 120
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert Bl 120 - - - 120
Leung Wing Ning PkE 120 - - - 120
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Lim Ghee e
(retired on 24 May 2011) (R-F—%
AAZTEAR) - - - - -
Cheong Hooi Kheng* R
(appointed as executive R_T—F
director on 24 May 2011) BAZTHmAE
ZERNTES) - - - - -
480 1,658 - - 2,138
* During the period from 1 January 2010 to 24 May 2011, Ms. Cheong * BT ZTF-A—HE-Z—%FH

Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Madam Lim Ghee.

AZ+HHEILHRE - E80ZtRHE
REZBEEE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8. HEHMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one TEBESTHALH  —R(ZZT—F
(2010: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in F:—R)RES HFMRKMZE7F
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the W HtER(ZE—FTF : IH)
other four (2010: four) individuals are as follows: ALz HB@REInT -
2011 2010
22— —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries and other emoluments e R EA 3,638 933
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 647 -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRFTEIME R 18 40
4,303 973
The emoluments of the four (2010: four) individuals with the NE(ZE—ZF : IZ) &= FMA
highest emoluments are within the following bands: T2 EFHBMEATHER :
2011 2010
—ET——F —ZT-TF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals
A AER
Nil = HK$1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 7T 1 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T 2 1,500,000 /87T 3 -
4 4
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9. AR v BERR R A AN REAN 1
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders RRAEmHAEARBGEEEER
of the Company includes a loss of HK$11,816,000 (2010: FERARA M BRERPEE Z
HK$1,841,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 11,816,000 8L 2 EHE(ZE—FF :
statements of the Company. 1,841,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

10. LOSS PER SHARE

a)  Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of 22,825,000 (2010: HK$19,496,000)
and the weighted average number of approximately
2,631,652,000 (2010: 2,631,652,000) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

b)  Diluted loss per share
Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per
share as the Company does not have dilutive potential
ordinary shares for the years ended 31 December 2011
and 2010.

11. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“"MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products
and services) and geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to
the executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following three reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the

following reportable segments.

- Property development: this segment develops and
sells the Group's residential properties. Currently the
Group's activities in this regard are carried out in Hong
Kong.

- Horticultural services: this segment provides
horticultural services. Currently the Group's activities

in this regard are carried out in Hong Kong.

- Property management and other related business:
this segment mainly provides building management
services. Currently the Group's activities in this regard

are carried out in Hong Kong.

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Company's executive directors monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable

segment on the following bases:

12.

vig ke
AEBERTRADAE S EREED
ZEDBIREBER (ERMRTE)
ARt &l - ImREGLERD B &
RAFEMEAARAEIELERRE
%Wﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁéﬂﬁi—ﬁ
ZHR  AEEZINUAT=E2HD
B WEKEMEE ﬁiﬁ AR AR R
IATE2HAHE
- YRR ZOBPERNMEER
SEEEME - AEBEZRE U
HRZMEEDEUNES °
- EER®B: Zo0BRH‘HEZR
% ARBERERILFERZAE
EEHLNES o
- VEEEREMBEBES: %o
BIBERHBFEERE A%
BBREILRAR MBS
ISV
a)  JPBURSL - VA KA

MEEOEERBA RS BRSO EE
BEANER—Bz2AR » AR
FIMITESHA T EREESR
ENHECEE  BERAE:
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interests in
associates, investments in financial assets, deferred
tax assets and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors and other payables
attributable to the sales activities of the individual
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by
the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA" i.e.,
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”,

“adjusted earnings before
where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income
and "depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the Group’s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other corporate administration

costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter segment sales), interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for
similar orders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

12. 23 ()

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) a)  AJRAR - EE KA ()
Information regarding the Group's reportable REE—ZT——FR-FT—FF
segments as provided to the Company’s executive T A=+—RBUEFEZERY
directors for the purposes of resource allocation and fie K 5 E D BB RIB A AR RIT
assessment of segment performance for the years EERHEAEAEERE A
end 31 December 2011 and 2010 is set out below. BN T o
Property Property Property management
development development Horticultural and other
- Hong Kong - Singapore services related busingss Total
NERE-FA TERE-HE L NEERRENERER it
201 2010 WM 2010 m 2_010 m 010 2011 010
5--F 3-%F 3§ 3% T--f 3% T 5-3F §--f 3-%%
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Thn  TEr Thn A TEm  TEn TR TR T Thn
Revenue from externl KEHIERL
customers iz 239 33150 - - 3,865 310 521 28 6721 376498
Inter-seqment revenue AERhE - - - - '] %9 - - '] 99
Reportable segment revenue Eeplie Q3 33 - - 3913 4,089 51 W T8 3714
Reportable segment lossl/profit ~ HE9E(EE) /&7
(adjusted EBITDA) (A2 EBITDA) (11,538) (10,830) - 12,461 661 3 561 131 10,316) 219
Interest income flg JA/\ 513 140 - - - - - - 513 140
Interest expenses flg - - - - - - - - - -
Amortisation and depreciaton iﬂ%i ik
for the year [2) {3 - - (34) (64) (1) 1) (53] (68)
Valuation gain on investment properties % M%7 (EENE - - - - - - - Kl - 0
Fairvalue gain on transfer of RENzERE
investment property to and and BEEE LR
bulding held for own use ER/0TENE - - - - - - 50 - 50 -
(ain on disposal of subsidiares hERBL T UE - - - 12461 - - - - - 14
Expenses incurred for the HETHERDEE
setflmentamangements inrespect RAEAZFR
of certain sale transactions - (56,547) - - - - - - - (56,547)
Income tax expense FERsl - - - - - - - - - -
Reportable segment assets E1EEE 24130 0% - - 1,007 il 359 W1 26658 342
Addiions to non-curient Wﬁiﬁiﬁiﬁ
seqment assets durng the year AELE - - - - 13 2 - % 13 %
Reportable segment liabilities &"ﬁﬁf* B0 3846 - - k) 23 % 111 U208 33N
For the year ended 31 December 2011, revenues HE-T——F+-A=+—H

of approximately HK$12,286,000, HK$10,447,000,
HK$10,281,000 and HK$9,315,000 are derived from
four single external customers respectively, each of
them contributed over 10% of total revenue of the
Group. These revenues are attributable to the property
development segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, there was no
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of
the Group's revenue.

HEFE 2lpNEE—FF
E A Uk 25 #912,286,000 5 Tt

10,447,000/ 7T ~ 10,281,000 7T
59,315,000/ > ZEE P
WERYBBREEBNR 2
10% « ZEWREBWEERD
o

BE_Z-ZTF+_A=t+—H

IHFEE TEEER S Z /A
BAREEWA10% 2B °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. A% ()
b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or b) W& BB - BRASER - B
loss, assets and liabilities 7 R A 2 ik
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHIT
Revenue e
Reportable segment revenue WwE DB 46,769 377,467
Elimination of inter-segment D TR
revenue (48) (969)
Consolidated turnover IREEERE 46,721 376,498
Profit ﬁ%u
Reportable segment (loss)/profit S¥a(E18) % F) (10,316) 2,194
Elimination of inter-segment Tfﬁﬁﬁ o 48 e
profit (48) (39)
Reportable segment (loss)/profit REAEEEHINEFZ
derived from Group's external HEDLE(BR),EF
customers (10,364) 2,155
Other revenue and net income/(loss) HAbUkzs RUKA ~(E18) F58 434 (144)
Depreciation and amortisation T Ko 6 (943) (1,071)
Finance costs BhE A (16) (44)
Unallocated corporate expenses RPBEARZH (11,936) (20,392)
Consolidated loss before taxation BRERIARA 1B (22,825) (19,496)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. 2% ()

b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or b) W IRAR - WA SR I - B
loss, assets and liabilities (continued) e K B 2 SR ()
2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets WEDREE 265,586 342,414
Elimination of inter-segment 5 > KA e R W sk E
receivables - _
265,586 342,414
Other financial assets HthemEE 6,950 5,050
Unallocated corporate assets KNBLRRIEE
— cash and cash equivalents -ReKBEEEY 121,088 402,493
— other assets - Hih&E 3,424 3,731
Consolidated total assets A BERR 397,048 753,688
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities WEHEAR 24,228 353,220
Elimination of inter-segment o fB R A 0E
payables - -
24,228 353,220
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO AREE 1,166 8,189
Consolidated total liabilities e REeE 25,394 361,409
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

) Geographic information
The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. For the years ended 31 December

2011 and 2010, all external customers of the Group are
located in Hong Kong. The geographical location of the

specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, all

specified non-current assets of the Group are located
in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS 13. Al ¥
a)  The Group a) AN
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own Buildings  Furniture,
use under held forown  equipment Total
finance  use carried and other Investment fixed
leases at fair value fixed assets Sub-total property assets
B UATE &R RE
A& Slgkz REfM EEEE
ZBE BEERET BEEE et RENE B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TER TERT TER TR TAR

Cost or valuation: REZHE
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-ZE—-F—H 600 330 5,203 6,133 320 6,453
Additions RE - - 134 134 - 134
Disposals HE - - (172) (172) - (172)
Deficit on revaluation BiEEH - (22) - (22) - (22)
Less: elimination of W RRNEYH

accumulated

depreciation - 8 - 8 - 8)
Fair value adjustment AFERE - - - - 30 30
At 31 December 2010 R-E-%F

TZR=t-B 600______ . 300 ____. 5165 _____ 6065 _____ .30 _____ 6415 __
Representing: HER
Cost RE 600 - 5,165 5,765 - 5,765
Valuation - 2010 HE-—2-FF - 300 - 300 350 650
600 300 5,165 6,065 350 6,415

Cost or valuation: REZEE
At 1 January 2011 R-Z——F—F—H 600 300 5,165 6,065 350 6,415
Additions NE - - 64 64 - 64
Disposals HE - - (80) (80) - (80)
Transferred fromy(to) #y/(#5) 370 30 - 400 (400) =
Deficit on revaluation BiEE - (92) - (92) = (92)
Less: elimination of W RRMEYE

accumulated depreciation - (8) - (8) - (8)
Fair value adjustment AFERE - - - - 50 50
At 31 December 2011 R-F——F

TZR=t-B S 970 280 ____.5149_ _____ 6349 ______ T 6,349 _
Representing: HER
Cost R1E 970 - 5,149 6,119 - 6,119
Valuation - 2011 “E-—F——F - 230 - 230 - 230
970 230 5,149 6,349 - 6,349
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Bl ¥ (4)
a)  The Group (continued) a)  AEE (4)
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own Buildings Furniture,
use under held forown  equipment Total
finance use carried and other Investment fixed
leases atfairvalue fixed assets Sub-total property assets
RRERE
RLEEE NATE  fA-RE
REELH [l %2 REAt BEEE
R BEERET BEEE Pt RENE #E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TR TiER TERL TR TiER

Accumulated amortisation ~ ZHEHRITE

and depreciation:

At 1 January 2010 RZZ-%5-A—-R 172 - 2,720 2,892 - 2,892
Charge for the year FEEZH 12 8 1,051 1,071 - 1,071
Written back on disposals HEREE - - (164) (164) - (164)
Elimination on revaluation B - 8 - 8 - 8
At 31 December 2010 RZZT-ZF

tzR=+-8 . L ol | B o 3
Accumulated amortisation ZIHBERAE

and depreciation:

At 1 January 2011 RZE——5F-A-H 184 - 3,607 3,791 = 3,791
Charge for the year REERH 12 8 923 943 - 943
Written back on disposals LEREE - - (79) (79) - (79)
Elimination on revaluation ERyisofic - (8) - (8) - (8)
At 31 December 2011 R=E——%

L = = N 1 . O ) . ) S 484
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2011 R=Z——F

+-A=+-H 174 230 698 1,702 - 1,702
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-%%

+ZA=t+-8 416 300 1,558 2,274 350 2,624
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

b)

<)

Valuation of investment properties

All investment properties of the Group were valued as
at 31 December 2010 on an open market value basis
calculated by reference to recent market transactions
in comparable properties. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who have among their
staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued.

Revaluation of buildings held for own use

The buildings held by the Group for own use were
revalued as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 at their
open market value by reference to recent market
transactions in comparable properties. The valuations
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were carried out by
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited and
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited respectively, who
are independent firms of surveyors and have among
their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and

category of property being valued.

The revaluation deficit of HK$92,000 (2010:
HK$22,000) has been recognised in profit or loss.

Had these buildings held for own use been carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been HK$483,000 (2010:
HK$473,000).

13, [ % A (4)

b)

)

BE W EAE

RZZ-ZF+-_A=+—RH"
AEBENBEBSEA YR
HMER S E 2 AR EEE
HAAEREMFEETHE - BE
MBI EMEERITARAR
(REEBRBAERHNEMEEE
FEtz BT HRAEEY
EWH LB EBO 2 &ER) E

7

Ffe oA WA

RZE——FR-E-TF+=
B=+—8 "EEZ2Z0LkY
EZEHMERSGZ ARMEE
EREARET - RZZT——F
RZZ—ZTHF+_A=+—A"
HERE-AEBHEHEERSE
EEBARARULEBERITE
RAB (K ABL RS/ B#ES
BRESIEMEgERe LY
BT U HM R EEDEDE &
BAIBEGI 2485 ) D RI#ETT °

BEE492,0008 T (—E—F
F:22,00087m) ERNBEmRE

ol

W& FHIEE BEBFRRAR
2HFEINNE EEEAEK
7483,0008 T(Z & — & & :
473,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICA]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

d)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:

13.

el ¥ (40)

d) PR HE

2011 2010
—E——F =T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
In Hong Kong R EE
- long leases —RHEE - -
— medium-term leases —FHIFE 1,004 1,066
1,004 1,066
Representing: HER
Interests in leasehold land IR B RV E B AFHE
held for own use under ERAE T s s
finance leases 774 416
Buildings held for own use AR BT BR 2 35 1E
carried at fair value BRETF 230 300
Investment property BB - 350
1,004 1,066
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. JAHE A " 2 B ¥
The Company
NN
2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost KEMRGD - RE 1 1
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TREREIZEFZEARAEREE &
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of EXBEIHWBATZEE -
the Group.
Proportion of ownership interests
BERRERLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
Name of company and operation  paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activity
SRR BRITRAR TEEZ  HALT -k
DEER EEMY AR ERER ] DEEE TEXH
Century Elegant Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% - 100% Provision of property
ENBRAR e HK$1 management services
1REE BT ERR RENEEERE
Cheung Kee Garden Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding and
R tEBRAT Bl HK$1 each and provision of
450,000 non-voting horticultural services
deferred shares REERRIRM
of HK$1 each BERH%
100 REREE 1 T
2 3@ 450,000 %
BREE1ETL
ERZEELR
Donwin Property Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property holding
REREXERAA e HK$1 each NERE
2EEREE AT EER
Fort Property Management  Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Provision of
Limited BE HK$1 each management services
RENEERBRLT 2REREE AT EER REEERY
Sui Chong Finance Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Provision of financing and
Limited &b HK$10 each management services
mEHBERRA REREBI0ETZ SRR RARE RETERH
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. AW A w2 B (8)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interests
BRERRLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
Name of company and operation  paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ALK BETRAE TEEZ  MALTF iRl
NEER E3E RAGHE BRER BB G TEEH
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property holding
(HK.) Limited B HK$10 each NERE
TnEER () ERAF 2EEREE 0BT LRk
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Provision of property
Resources Limited i of HK$1 each management and
HEERERERAT 1,000 REREE AT project management
LRk services
REMEERR
R EERS
Super Homes Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 ~ 100% - 100% Property development
& each and 100 non-voting NEEE
deferred shares of HK$0.3
gach
100 kB REE BT
ERERR100REHREE
03B BEZERLR
Vision Capital Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding
B HK$1 each REMR

2REREE BT EER
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 15. Al 4 ik ¥
The Group The Company
AEE /NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--F “T-TF —2—-F “T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEx FAT TiEn FAT
Available-for-sale BRATETH
unlisted equity HERET
securities at fair value IR T 5 150 450 - -
Available-for-sale RRFER
unlisted debt HERLET
securities at fair value BEES 6,800 4,600 6,800 4,600
6,950 5,050 6,800 4,600
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group's available- RZBE——FR-_ZF-FTF+_A
for-sale equity securities were individually determined to be =+—H AEEAJHIEREIES
impaired on the basis of a material decline in their fair value TR B R EERK A KNG T8 £ %M
below cost which indicated that the cost of the Group's AETERE SRTNEEREKAT
investment in them may not be recovered. Impairment REERUR D - BB S 1R TD AR R Y
losses on the investment were recognised in profit or loss in FE0)0) PR BRI B sk MR (R
accordance with the policy set out in note 1 (i) (i) (see note iE4) e
4).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

16. INVENTORIES 16. f#+ &
a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial a)  SIAHZEAMBERAERNZFREG
position comprise: I
The Group
iy ]
2011 2010
25 -T2
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FET
Horticultural plants REEY 302 262
Completed properties held for sale BIEHET I 249,555 281,228
249,857 281,490
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, no inventory was RZIE——FR - T—FTF+_
stated at net realisable value. A=+—8 WEGFENAEE
FEFER o
b)  The analysis of carrying value of completed properties b) MFEMEZE TYEZ WA
held for sale is as follows: NAHTE .
The Group
ASEE
2011 2010
—B—-—& -T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
In Hong Kong BAERN
- long leases —RHMEE 249,555 281,228
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended

31 December 2011 i 3 ——4F | f] =" — HILF/&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

16. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 16. #H#1 (&)
c) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as ) AR RBR ARSI
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: LR ¢

Horticultural plants Properties Total

EEEY ES @it
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“3-3F S%—F “33F 3% 1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AL Tiégn AL Fign TR

free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Carrying amount of BEFERRE
inventories sold 577 30,796 300,157 31379 300,734
17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES B S B S Al E B
The Group The Company
rEE NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —Z-%F —E—-F —Z-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx THL TR THL
Amount due from a fEM— M B E]
subsidiary e - - 262,606 274,601
Amount due from arelated ~ JEU—FEREE LA
company LR " - — -
Trade debtors [EWE SR 634 544 = -
Receivables for monies EAREREE
held by the solicitor HERE
in accordance with the BEZEKR
relevant property sale X
agreements 13,954 19,863 - -
Other debtors Hi R 577 111 = -
Loans and receivables ERRERE 15,176 20,518 262,606 274,601
Rental and other deposits e kAikse 1,401 1,610 = -
Prepayments %EHTK b 757 2,137 372 372
17,334 24,265 262,978 274,973
The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest- FEUW —RIM B AR 2 Rk Ty

L BEETERY -

EESREMERRE  FEHER
—F R EI KRB o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17. S5 B 30 i MBIk X (480)

(CONTINUED)
a)  Ageing analysis a)  JRER B
Included in trade and other receivables are trade RE S RAMEWIRIEA - UK
debtors (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful Z S RF (IR RIZRAMAEEE)
debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the end RmEBR 2RS0T -
of the reporting period :
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEIT TFET
Within 1 month —fEART 478 436
1 to 3 months —Z={@A 151 107
More than 3 months but less BiE=1EA
than 12 months B R+—EA 5 1
634 544
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 23(a). REBZEEREHNWFE
23(a) °
b)  Impairment of trade debtors b)  MEBCR B MRk Z WA

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against

trade debtors directly (see note 1(i)(i)).

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010,
there was no impairment loss made against trade
debtors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

are as follows:

17. S5 B 30 MR X (480)

AT WA 2 HEWCR S Rk
1E B e A RIRR R TR B 2 & W
BHRKZIREDHTIAT ¢

The Group
rEE

2011 2010

—E2——F —ZT-TF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FA&T

Neither past due nor impaired BEAR@HATNARRE 478 436
Less than 1 month past due SemoR—ms 1 37 ------------- 79

More than 1 month past due BN —EA 19 29
I (258 108

634 544

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances are still considered fully recoverable.

BEARE AT AR BB 2 FE UK IR T
BRREERY BIERCH 2R
5o

B E B R TR E < & YRR TD
BRETEAEEAR R IFEEAR
BZBUEP o ERAERLR -
ERERR BREEERLE
HIREXREH N BEBERTDRR
AEERE - WEARZ S EHR
TR E R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. Be&RBLE&SEY
a)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise: a)  BERBESHEPE
The Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Deposits with banks and BFERRIRTT R
other financial H 5 mirkrd
institutions PRETN 121,205 440,259
Cash on hand FECHE - -
Cash and cash equivalents AR K
in the consolidated statement LireRene
of financial position and 2 Re MR EHEY
consolidated statement
of cash flows 121,205 440,259
The Company
¥ N/NE
2011 2010
—E2——-F —Z-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Deposits with banks FHRERITR
and other financial EHAh & mtlrs
institutions ZIFR 5 10
Cash on hand FHzRE - -
Cash and cash equivalents VAR E s RE
in the statement MRSEEY
of financial position 5 10
At 31 December 2011, bank balances carried interest R-_Z—F+_-_A=+—H2
at market rates which range from 0.00% to 2% (2010: IRITHEFIENT0.00% £2% (=
range form 0.00% to 0.50%). T—ZF : 170.00% £0.50%)

pait ZIEC
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. B&RBLE&SEY (4)
(CONTINUED)
b)  Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash generated B BE T B ML AR A AR B 2 W
from operations: JE :
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT-ZTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FH&T
Loss before taxation BREL AT 1E (22,825) (19,496)
Adjustments for: AT AE
Fair value gain on transfer REMEERE
of investment property to land BIEA Rt RIEF
and building held for own use ZANFERE (50) -
Valuation gain on investment WEWMEZ
properties YR G - (30)
Revaluation losses on buildings BFEHEE 92 22
Amortisation of leasehold land TRE iy 12 12
Depreciation of other fixed assets HtETEENE 931 1,059
Impairment loss on AHEEZIELET
available-for-sale unlisted BHEBIERE
securities 300 830
Finance costs BB RS 16 44
Interest income FLEMA (737) (243)
Dividend income from AHEERET
available-for-sale unlisted THZBRBIA
securities - (304)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR - (12,461)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HERBETEEERIE 1 5
Waiver of commission payable REEMNRS (5,491) -
Changes in working capital: BEESEE :
Decrease in inventories FERD 31,633 205,908
Decrease in trade and B 5 R EH A EUERIA
other receivables A 6,915 99,284
(Decrease)/increase in trade %& H e ERIE
and other payables CR), /1 (323,991) 215,870
Cash (used in)/generated from s (ER) /FEEZERS
operations (313,194) 490,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. B 5 B Ui M A SR
The Group The Company
rEE NS
2011 2010 2011 2010
—T—-F —E-ZF —E--F “E-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T THERT THT
Trade creditors [ENESES 11,702 25,637 = -
Retentions payable EIHRE TR 2,474 3,404 = -
Other creditors and HAtERTARSN
accrued charges RIERTHS 11,037 16,545 653 837
Payable for the refund of sales  FLitHE THER S
deposit in respect of the REHERS Y
cancellation of certain sale JERTRIE
transactions - 222,519 - -
Payable for the settlement HETHERS
arrangements in respect HEERG

of certain sale transactions eI

(note 19(b)) (PE19(0)) - 56,547 - -
Amount due to the Company's [ER AARIETERR

substantial shareholder I8 (PfiEE 261(0))

(note 26(b)) - 6,273 - -
Financial liabilities measured R S4AK A5 8-

atamortised cost ZEmaR 25213 330,925 653 837
Forward sales deposits BlEEHE S

and instalments received ROERR = 30,043 = -

25,213 360,968 653 837

All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due BREMREBRIEN MBEE S REM
to related parties), apart from the retentions payable, are JERBRIB (RGNS BEA TFRIE) 78
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one AR —FAXNABERBRASIZE
year or are repayable on demand. KIEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19. S5 B 30 ME AR X (481)

(CONTINUED)
a)  Ageing analysis a)  JRER B
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors REZRAMBENEKRER - B
with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the B HRIBR MG R ZERE DT
reporting period: FORNE
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within 1 month —fEAAT 7 22,909
After 1 month but within 3 months  —{EAZR{ETEBE={EA - 8
Over 6 months @& A 11,695 2,720
11,702 25,637
b) Settlement arrangements in respect of certain sale b) HHFTHBERAZZIELT

transactions

There were complaints made by purchasers of
certain units of a development property of the Group.
After consulting the Group's legal advisors and
for commercial reasons, the Group addressed the
concerns raised by these purchasers by offering them
two options:

Option (1): the Group will, at its own costs and within
an agreed period of time, carry out certain agreed
renovation work for a purchaser and pay the purchaser
a HK$600,000 ex-gratia payment.

Option (2): the Group will pay a purchaser at 120% of
the original purchase price so as to achieve the effect
of cancelling the relevant sale transaction.

Based on the information available to the Group, the
directors of the Company estimated the expenses
incurred for the settlement arrangements under these
two options to be approximately HK$56,547,000
which were recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2010.
Such complaints were settled during the year ended
31 December 2011.

AEB—EHRMEETEMLS
REERFF - KHAEBEHERE
BEREABENEER @ A%
BB BRHMEBEREEEERM
BT ZE -

HIE(() AEBEKBEBRHE
HERNAEFRETETHED
. RABRXXNRINGER
600,000 7T °

EIEZ): AEBBRREZ
120% M B R 5K #E T Z 2B
HREHEER MR

RIEASEHEBEER - A7
BEEMHBEELRHEENZILEY
£56,547,0008 7T + &> HAE
E-ET-TF+-_F=+—HIt
FEZERAWMERTER - ZE
BFENBE-_EZ——E+_
Zt+—HILFELE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

20. BANK BORROWINGS, UNSECURED 20. HYTAY R (JERCH)
At 31 December 2011, the bank borrowings were repayable RZE——F+ZA=+—H " #17
as follows: BEARUTHEEE
The Group
bS]
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
+=ZB=+—-B +ZA=1—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT THT
Carrying amount of bank loan, which RTERREE - 8
contains a repayment on demand BRERBRFER
clause, repayable based on scheduled FE{S5hE - ﬁ%ﬁ*”
repayment dates set out in the loan EREGE ==
agreement: BT RREER
Within 1 year —FR 181 260
After 1 year but within 2 years — R BNRBREF - 181
Bank loans classified under current liabilities FOER(FERRBER) 181 441
The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term AERTEE(BERERKEEZEH
loans repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost. B30 TR SR AT BR
At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the effective interest rate R-F——FR=ZF-FFFTZA
for the floating rate bank borrowings was 5% per annum. =T—B BEFPRRTEZRITE

EZERNERETFEE -

All the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 R-FE-—FR-F-FTF+-A
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and carried interest =+ - BAMARITEESHAB T
at Hong Kong Dollars Prime Lending Rate. B RETEEERFIEGTR
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

21. DEFERRED TAXATION

a)

b)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

The Group and the Company had no material deferred
tax liabilities not provided for at 31 December 2011 and
2010.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

i) The Group
In accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(p), at 31 December 2011, the Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$250,741,000 (2010:
HK$235,532,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the tax losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not

expire under current tax legislation.

ii)  The Company
At 31 December 2011, the Company has
cumulative tax losses of HK$15,684,000 (2010:
HK$15,684,000) available for set-off against
future taxable profits for an unlimited period of
time. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such cumulative tax losses as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against
which the tax losses can be utilized will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and such
tax losses are subject to the agreement with the

tax authority.

21. EEBLH

a)

b)

R L AU

AKERARTR-F——FR
—ET-TF A=+ AlE
TR R ) BB BUE B

& e

R W 2 2 N HE B I

1) AL ]
REBH 1P FrE 2 &5
HE  RNZE——F+=R
=t+—8 AEEWER
250,741,000/ (ZE—=F
£ : 235,532,000/ T ) 2
2R RIBE B RERIEER A
BE  AATAMZBBEA
iR R BRI EEE
R IR FE R T i | LAVERR TE S
B A o RIBRITHE
ERR REBEEEBILARE

i) ALAE]
RZE——F+ A
=+ —HB' AAAHH
HHRARERB & 2
HmEBRARANEEEAR
15,684,000 T (=& —=F
F : 15,684,000/87T) ° &
HZFRABEEBER
EEHBEEE BAREER
Mz Rl AR T RA
BE B A R TR B R B A
EBEBIERE A B
ZEBBEERESHBE
BRE  FAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a)  Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group's

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

22. EA Bl

a)  HELRALRTR Sy 2 5 8
AEEZEAERESHERED 2
MR AR 2 HIRE N R A
REBBR - ARFIEEZ AR

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes HRBANENRER 2 EB)F
in the Company’s individual components of equity BER T :
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company . AT |
Capital
Share Share  redemption Contributed  Fairvalue Accumulated
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total
EXER
kxR R @ARH  NTERE  ZiEE a3t
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
ThR 7 TER TER TER ThR ThR
At 1 January 2010 NZ%-55-F-H 131,582 4785 121 234897 30 @21 279488
Changes in equity for 2010: “5-BERREY.
Loss for the year EhEg - - - - - 1.841) (1,841)
Other comprehensive income for theyear — EREHZEMRA - - - - 1,100 - 1,100
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERREERLE - - - - 1,100 [1.841) (741)
At 31 December 2010 RZ-RET-A=1-H 131,582 4,785 01 13897 140 06 2877
At 1 January 2011 R-2—%-A-R 131,582 4,785 11 234897 140 (94068 218747
Changes in equity for 2011; E--EERRE:
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - (11816)  (11816)
Other comprehensive income for the year —~ EREHZERA - - - - 2200 - 2200
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRREERLE - - - - 2200 (11,816) (9,616)
At 31 December 2011 R-2—t-A=1-A 131,582 4,785 11 234897 3630 (105884 269,131
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 22. HAR B A ()

b)  Share capital b) A
Authorised and issued share capital HIE R C TR
2011 2010
—E2—-F —2-ZF
Number Number
of shares  Nominal value of shares  Nominal value
RIS A RiHEE HfE
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
TR TEx TR FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREE0.05
HK$0.05 each BT LRk 3,000,000 150,000 3,000,000 150,000
Ordinary shares, issued and LER - BT
fully paid: RER:
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BR
+-A=1+—H 2,631,652 131,582 2,631,662 131,582
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LR AEABRERTRE K
dividends as declared from time to time and are ZHRE - BEARFEHLLER
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the AE-—ZREE - FELTEAR
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard HARAZHHREEZARSHE
to the Company's residual assets. o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

¢)  Nature and purpose of reserves
i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve is governed by

the Bermuda Companies Act.

ii)  Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company and
the aggregate of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of the subsidiaries acquired.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company may make distributions
to its members out of contributed surplus in

certain circumstances.

iii)  Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

iv)  Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in notes 1(e)(i) and 1(i)
(i).

d) Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was approximately
HK$129,013,000 (2010: HK$140,829,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

e)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-
capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
borrowings and other financial liabilities) less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital comprises all components of
equity.

During 2011, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2010, was to maintain the net debt-
to-capital ratio at below 60%. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing

or sell assets to reduce debt.

22. AR Befill (4)

e)

A4 8L

AEEEREAZERZARIR
EAEEGEREBREBFERSE
EERE  DEEBEEARKF
HEZERMRBEEARES
BERAZEE  BERKRRA
EER N A E M AREA T RA

S o

Bl

REBEG KL E RS EAREEL
TRAIRER  AERSKRERE
BERATHREFE L ESEER
KR AFE AR R Z 458
KRS 2 FRIBAS F 18 - 30 A
BEIRFEZ BIEHEARBIELH

o

MEMEFIED 5 NEEIA
FREHEARLRAEEERA
BARRRE - BILAREE 2 ERF
BRREHK(BREEE A
EMABREREMEEE
BYEE - EARESMEBRAK
e

RZT——FR NEEZEKE
B-F-TFERENE - TR
BERFRAHERL EER60% e
RERFHAEZLE - AEEX
FRBEARRIRMNZBE - BT
ARG - MBCREIRER - 1T
HEBREIHEEE @ R
&% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

e) Capital management (Continued) e)
The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2011 and
2010 was as follows:

22. AR Befidli (4)

AT BE ()
RZB-——FR_Z-ZF+_
R=+—BzEBFRUERL
AT

The Group The Company
K&E NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
-5 -F-TF %% -I-%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fisE TEx AR Fax TEL
Financial liabilities included FAE S REMER
in trade and other payables RECZSREE 19 25,213 330,925 653 837
Bank borrowings RITEE 20 181 441 = -
Total debt EEE 25,394 331,366 653 837
Less: Cash and cash ek
equivalents =By 18 (121,205) (440,259) (5) (10)
Net (deposits)/debt (B /B8 (95,811) (108,893) 648 827
Capital BR 371,654 392,279 269,131 278,747
Net debt-to-capital ratio BERFELER
BARLE N/ATRE NATER 0% 0%
At 31 December 2011 and 2010, neither the Company RIE——FRZZB-TF+Z
nor any of its subsidiaries were subject to externally A=+—8  &2rsETMH

imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in
the normal course of the Group's business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash at banks. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. The Group grants a
credit period of not more than 30 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 3
months overdue are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Cash is placed with financial institution with high credit
rating.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. bR B A B R A P
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
and the Company as set out in note 25(a), the Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting period
is disclosed in note 25(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to pay:
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 23, ik bl B A B R A PEL (1)
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b)  RENE SRR (B)
Specifically, for bank loan which contains a repayment LHZ  REERITUEENE
on demand clause which can be exercised at the T 2 IRERIGFERZIBITE
bank’'s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash RME @ STERBEARAR
outflow based on the earliest period in which the entity EREFR HFHRAGFEZR S
can be required to pay, that is if the bank was to invoke TR - MW SR 1T 8 5 A & 44 B AR
its unconditional rights to call the loan with immediate EEERZREN - HARITHER
effect. The maturity analysis for other bank borrowings FEIE ST IR B ET 2R KA 5
is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates. fwmed o
The Group
5%
2011 2010
= i
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
BHRFR BHRIFTE
Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Carrying
year or on amount at year or on amount at
demand 31 December demand 31 December
W+=A ®+=A
—FR Er=EZ —£R =+—H2
RRER REE FIREK REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT TAET TET
Bank loan subject to a BBBRENER
repayment on demand B2 BRITER
clause 181 181 a41 441
Creditors and FERIRR R BT
accrued charges 25,213 25,213 324,652 324,652
Amount due to the AR
Company's substantial FERFFTE
shareholder - - 6,273 6,273
25,394 25,394 331,366 331,366
Financial guarantees issued: 3 7 £ BIE(R :
Maximum amount BERNSALE
guaranteed (note 25(a)) (F35E25()) 26 - 59 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of bank loan with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreement. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period. As a result, these amounts
were greater than the amounts disclosed in the “on
demand” time band in the maturity analysis contained
in the above maturity analysis. Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the directors do not
consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank loan will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreement.

23. AR AT B R AP (51)

b)

) 4 B B (B0)
TRARBEER G EME M ET
FERZEBRERGR 2R
TEFRIMASMHE - 2RE
BERA KN X (M AFEF
KRB ERRERNFX)
AEZNEFTE- Bt - 252
RRRI £ 3CRIHR A 2047 B 2 1
HEoRER ] KEREEZ®
B B RAKEHBRR - B
ERR - RITTIARAREITEAER
BEREEREHER - EFHEE
ZEFRITE B RIEE R A
HFTENE R B HER -

Maturity Analysis - Bank loan subject to a repayment on demand clause

based on scheduled repayments
M BT —RBF BN BRERERERZRITER

More than

1 year but Total

Within less than  undiscounted

On demand 1 year 2years cash outflows

—FHE KBRS

BREXR -5 MEUT TR BEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FTExT FTEx FTER
31 December —T——F

2011 +=A=+—H - 184 - 184
31 December —T-FF

2010 +TZA=+—H - 276 184 460
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 23. i Be A B B A VAR (%)
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b)  RENE SRR (B)
The Company
|
2011 2010
—E-——-F —Z-%F
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
BRKITR BRRTR
Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Carrying
year or on amount at year or on amount at
demand 31 December demand 31 December
Rt=A W+=ZA
—F R =+—RA2 —FR =t-Az
RER HREE REX EaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TET
Creditors and JERBRR R B F
accrued charges 653 653 837 837
Financial guarantees issued: 3 7 £ BIER :
Maximum amount BERNSASE
guaranteed (note 25(a)) (FI7E25()) 26 - 59 -
¢) Interest rate risk c)  FIFEE

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from AEBZHERBREERERS
RBECEEY  RITEE - AR
WITFRFEEATEFEEKX
2y AEEANRSEREEE
MBATEZHNERTE - A%
B2 RITEE 2T ERIEBER
RITFE20 4558 o IRAT B FIKEH S
MIRITEBEFEASEERE SR
FlEmE -

cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings. The
Group does not anticipate significant impact to cash
and cash equivalents because the interest rates of
bank deposits are not expected to change significantly.
The interest rates and maturity information of the
Group’s bank borrowings are disclosed in note 20.
Bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

<)

d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2011, it was estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1 percentage in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's result after tax and
retained profits by approximately HK$2,000 (2010:
HK$4,000). Other components of consolidated equity
would not be affected (2010: HK$Nil) by changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates that the impact
on the Group's result after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates, which exposes
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2010.

Currency risk
Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency in which they are measured.

The Group's exposure to currency risk is insignificant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

e)

Fair values

0

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period across the
three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical financial
instruments.

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable market

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. A AT B R AP (1)

i) BAFEIESTHTA
TREJNEREHR 2
BB REERNETR
[E®MTA: BFE] FRA
PREEMRAFESRGE
M=EFMRP  AAFE
ATEMERMIAZREE
B BERIENERT
B2 RAFE2BDERE
AMSIEFE - BR%HA
HATEFAEHRZEEEZ -
ERERFBOT

© BIRBBER):
R 4% B 5 18
CEY B TET
CRE@E) AT
8o

o F2f: MREAR
ST EUERTA
HHRE  KBEER
WA ERREERE
REJBEM ISR

data. HERMN - FTEAF
-

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured o FIRM(HEEZER) -
using valuation techniques in which any FAEFREZH AW
significant input is not based on observable SEER A B RIS
market data. BHEERMTER

S
2011
“E——F
The Group The Company
XEE AN
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
£-8 B F=4 At B Bz =R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TFTEx TEx TEx TFTEx TErx FEx FiEx
Assets BE
Available-for-sale AfEE
unlisted equity xEW
securities RS - 150 - 150 - - - -
Available-for-sale AHHE
unlisted debt AEM
securities BEEES 6,800 - - 6,800 6,800 - - 6,800
6800 150 - 6950 6800 - - 6800
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 23. 4 B 4T B B A P ()
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
e)  Fair values (Continued) e) AT (&)
i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) ) ERTFEIEeHTA
(#%)
2010
“Z-TF
The Group The Company
i3] NG|

Level T Level2 Level3 Total  Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
-8 F-H F=H Ait & FZR  F=R CH
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TEx TFEx TRExT TEx FExT THEx TET  TER

Assets 13
Available-for-sale AIEEHE
unlisted equity K
securities RAZES - 450 - 450 - - - -
Available-for-sale A E
unlisted debt KEm
securities EEES 4,600 - - 4,600 4,600 - - 4600
4,600 450 - 5,050 4,600 - - 4,600
During the year, there were no significant RERN E—REE_R
transfers between instruments in Level 1 and TEMmEREE -
Level 2.
ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other i) R FEKIMEED AR
than fair value TETANTFE
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the REBRARAFTHNEEHT
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost AMEEENIRRE NS
or amortised cost are not materially different SHAASIER - HEHER =
from their fair values as at 31 December 2011 T-——FRZZT—ZFF
and 2010. +=—A=+—HHAFE
mEAHA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

f) Estimation at fair values
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

i) Securities

Fair value for the unlisted equity investments
are estimated using the applicable fair value
measurement of the relevant assets and
liabilities of the investee. Fair value of unlisted
debt securities is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period without any
deduction for transaction costs.

ii)  Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

24. COMMITMENTS

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to three years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the

leases includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of office properties and office equipment are payable as

follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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BATER 2 EBITERRR °

i) Fd s
ANEMRARE 2 AFE
THRABREANZHBAEE
HEBZERRTFEER
e REMEBESHAQ
FETRHER RO TS
HwEE BETEREM
R BRAVEFIR ©

A E KR EH

RNFELRABLUEET
BEZBREMSMEFRZ
ARBREREZREMET -

24, 7%

AEERBARBEEROBAEZY
REZATEAN - ZEREZVRFHRB
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. 7R ()

The Group as lessee REBEREEA
2011 2010
—E2——F —"ZT-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Within 1 year —FLAR 1,377 3,074
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUBEBEERFUAN - 1,314
1,377 4,388

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company had no

material commitments.

25. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a)  Financial guarantees issued

At 31 December 2011, the Company had given a
corporate guarantee to a bank for issuing a letter of
indemnity to a third party in respect of a contract
undertaken by a wholly-owned subsidiary to the extent
of approximately HK$134,000 (2010: HK$134,000).
The extent of such facility utilised by the third party
at the end of the reporting period amounted to
approximately HK$26,000 (2010: HK$59,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income
in respect of the above guarantee issued because the
fair value of this guarantee was insignificant. As at
the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company do not consider it probable that a claim will
be made against the Company under the guarantee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

b) Contingent liability in respect of claims

ii)

A subsidiary of the Company was involved in
a dispute with a contractor in connection with
the contract for the foundation work on the
redevelopment of residential properties in Hong
Kong. After the end of the reporting period, the
dispute was resolved and the Group has agreed
to pay the outstanding construction cost of
approximately HK$2,700,000 to the claimant for
the settlement of this dispute. The outstanding
amount of HK$2,700,000 was already accounted
for in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

At 31 December 2011, a subsidiary of the
Company was involved in the disputes in
connection with the sales of certain completed
properties. The directors of the Company are
of the view that such disputes are based on
unreasonable and invalid grounds and are
unfounded. In the circumstances, the directors
of the Company believe that the disputes will not
have a material adverse impact on the financial
position of the Group. Accordingly, no specific
provision has been made in respect of these

disputes.

Except for the aforesaid, the Group and the Company do not

have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2011 and 2010.

25. BARHE R AR (8

b)

B £ SRRt & Hb

HEWRZ A AM

ii)

RAT—FEMWERREY
—RESGHOABHAEEE
BEEMEZMETRS
N2 FHE REARSHR
% ZFROEMRR K
SERERBRAXMR
B3R AN4) 2,700,000
BITABRZ T - ZE
2,700,000 BT 2 REES
BFERZZE——FR=F
—ZF+=-fA=+—H82
REMBARRRAAR -

X

—E2E-—f+=A
+—8  Axa—HK
BARESEREESET
TIMEZFH - AQA
BEERE ZFADER
TEBRERTSE  BHE
TEEERE - LB R
T ARAREEEE &
FHRETEHAEEZH
BMRREEERXTHE
. A MENZEF
BIELSEERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 26. HEBBALRY
TRANSACTIONS
a) Key management personnel remuneration a) FEATHA B4
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBTIBEEASNS (B
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s RS TR BES S AATE

directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest

. . . . ERIBERRMESMEEZE T
paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

REHMALTHME) 0T

2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHET
Short-term employee benefits HE B R A 7,018 2,138
Post-employment benefits B AR A 26 -
7,044 2,138
b)  Financing arrangements b) BERH
Amounts
owed from/(to) Related interest
related parties (expenses)/income
As at Year ended
31 December 31 December
Fely R BEALTIE BRI () A
Wt+=A=+—8H BE+-A=1+—-HLEFE
2011 2010 2011 2010
2% —FEF =% —TFF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE TBxT FAT TERT TAT
Due from a el — IR A RIS
related company (i) 1" - - -
Due to the Company's  EFNARREZREHE
substantial shareholder (ii) - (6,273) - -
Note: FtzE -
i) The outstanding balance with this related company is i) ZABERRZARERERTER
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment terms. T B REETEERE - &
The amount due from the related company is included in WEAENRZRIEBENFHAIES
“Trade and other receivable” (note 17). At 31 December 2011, MEMBEUKERE] (HE17) - R
no provision for bad or doubtful debts have been made in —F——%F+=ZA=+—H8"#
respect of this amount due. MR ZE D HREE L R B

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

b)

¢)

Financing arrangements (continued)

Note: (continued)

ii)

The outstanding balance with the Company’s substantial
shareholder was unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms. The amount due to the Company's
substantial shareholder is included in “Trade and other
payables” (note 19). During the year ended 31 December 2011,
the amount was settled.

Other related party transactions

i)

ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Group paid management fee of approximately
HK$5.9 million (2010: HK$14.6 million) to a
subsidiary of Hong Fok Land International
Limited (“"HFL"), a substantial shareholder
of the Company, for share of administrative
expenses. The management fee is determined
quarterly between the respective parties after
negotiations having regard to the cost of services
provided. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, this transaction was conducted in
the ordinary course of the Group's business on
terms mutually agreed by both parties.

During the year ended 31 December, 2011,
the Group paid building management fee of
approximately HK$421,000 (2010: HK$44,000) to
a subsidiary of HFL for the completed properties
held for sale owned by the Group. In the opinion
of the Company’s directors, this transaction was
conducted on normal commercial terms and in
the ordinary course of the Group's business.

26. EEBHEA LAY (H)

b) K (H)

MiaE - ()

ii)

ARBEBRRZKEELHRTY
BT NE B REEEENK
B ENARAREZRR KA
Tyt ATE 5 R E A A BRIA
(MsE19) c BHE-T——F+=
A=+—HIL¥E  ZFHAES

BEH -

o JCfLBIREA L35

i)

ii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 26, HEBHE ALY (4)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

<)

Other related party transactions (Continued)

iii)

On 16 November 2009, the Group entered
into an agreement with Hong Fok Corporation
Limited (“HFC"), the ultimate holding company
of the Company from 1 August 2007 to 15
December 2009 and a substantial shareholder
from 16 December 2009 onwards, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to sell and HFC agreed
to purchase the Group’s interest in Goldease
Group (as defined in note 27 below) at the cash
consideration of S$10,150,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$56,434,000). The transaction
was completed on 25 January 2010 and resulted
in a gain of approximately HK$12,461,000 on
such disposal (see note 27). In the opinion of
the Company’s directors, this transaction was
conducted on normal commercial terms and in
the ordinary course of the Group's business.

On 29 November 2010, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with a subsidiary of HFL, whereby the Group
agreed to sell and the subsidiary of HFL agreed
to purchase an upper roof of the completed
properties held for sale at a consideration of
HK$700,000. The transaction was completed
on 3 December 2010. In the opinion of the
Company's directors, this transaction was
conducted on normal commercial terms and in
the ordinary course of the Group's business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 27. HEWE A
On 25 January 2010, the Group disposed of its equity RZE—ZEF-—AZ+HA A%
interest in Goldease Investments Limited and its EHEHEMN Goldease Investments
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Goldease Limited & E K18 A 7 (4 [ Goldease
Group") (part of the property development), the details of EED(MEREZ — &5 ) 2 #
which are also disclosed in note 26(c)(iii). The assets and o GBI RE26(c) (i) R o £
liabilities related to the Goldease Group had been presented Goldease BN EEKABEER
as held for sale as at 31 December 2009. The net liabilities ZETNFTZA=T—HB2IAER
of Goldease Group at the date of disposal were as follows: {EHHE ° Goldease EEMNHEHHY
BEFHEOT
2010
—E-EF
HK$'000
FAT
Net liabilities disposed of: BEHEZEBEFE
Property, plant and equipment W - R MR 112
Properties held for sale BEHEYE 69,675
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EUARIA 21
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEEY 3,693
Amount due to a substantial shareholder RN —REERFFHIA (216)
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EAMENRIE (114,720)
Tax payable FEA TR (430)
Bank borrowings RITEE (20,340)
(62,305)
Amount due from Goldease Group Goldease &£ B4 /K 2 ZUIB 114,078
Release of exchange reserve bE 5 R (9,386)
42,387
Gain on disposal & 2 e 12,461
Total consideration, net of expenses BRE - NHRAX 54,848
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRESRAFE
Net cash consideration FIRERE 54,848
Bank balances and cash disposed of BHEZRITEHRLEIRS (3,593)
51,255
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #;% & ——4F A _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

28. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 28. " BRE_-F—-—4FT+2H
NEW STANDARDS AND Zob— HOk AR B AR R
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT A B2 AT ~ Wl e Rk R
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED Z W] fE 5
31 DECEMBER 2011
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEWSEWHm&coTERE &8
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new B ASEMEBIERNARBE =
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 ——F+ZA=F+—HLEFEERZ
December 2011 and which have not been adopted in these 1BET R 3T AR (ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬂ&%ﬁiﬁﬁlﬁiﬁk\
financial statements. These include the following which may It E R ERMA) o kB HEAREE
be relevant to the Group. FERE Z S ET RETERIIN T -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BBz &R

ZETHIREN

Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: 1 July 2011
Disclosures” — Transfers of financial assets

HEBUGMERNE TS - [HTA - #5E—EEcHEENER] —E——%+tHA—H

Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: 1 January 2013
Disclosures” — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

HEBWBMERNE T - [ LA #FE - HiefEERSHME EFNER —E-=%—HA—H

Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: 1 January 2015
Disclosures” — Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and transition disclosures

HEBWGEMEENE T [2F LA : #5FE— BB HHREERE ISR —Z—hF¥—H—H
HEEERH R B

Amendments to HKFRS 32 “Financial instruments: 1 January 2014
Presentation” — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HEBUGMERNEINW - [2HETA - 23/ - B IERTHARENE] —E—NF—HF—H

Amendments to HKAS 12 “/ncome Taxes” 1 January 2012
— Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets

HEBGTTERNE 125 - [AEH | —BLHIE - W& ZENER] —E-_F—HA—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial 1 July 2012
Statements” — Presentation of items
of other comprehensive income

HEBGTERNE 5K - [BIFHE 25— 25/A 2 BHATE B 8EE] —E-_F+HA—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% & ——4F 4 _H =+—H IFF¥

28. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

28.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

RBEE_F—-—4F 124
Zob— HOR AR B T N R
L e TR RS it
Z I RS ()

31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT B 2 &R
C ST EAR AR

HKFRS 9 " Financial instruments”
BB BHREERE I [2H T A/

1 January 2015
—E-hF¥—H—H

HKFRS 10 “ Consolidated Financial Statements”
EBMIERELENE 105 © [4FEHEHRZE ]

1 January 2013
—F—=F—H—H

HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”
BBV WEERNE 198 - [HEZHE

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”
BAEMBHRELERNFE 25 - [ HERAMEEEGE

1 January 2013
—E-=%F—H—H

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”
BBV IR EERIFE 135 - [ FEEE

1 January 2013
—E-—=%F—H—H

1 January 2013
—E-=%F—H—H

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) “Separate Financial Statements”
BRGFERSE 275 (RS ——FKIER]) - [ BUAB#HE]

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”

ARG EAFE 285 (R_F——FRER]) » [RBERFTIRE ERRENIRE

1 January 2013
—ET-—=%—H—H

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) “Employee benefits”
ERGFERE 195 (RS ——FKIER]) - [ES#EF]

1 January 2013
—ET-=%F—H—H

AREBRIEF I RIRAZFERT R
MEARHARBAIREHRZEE -
ERARLE NEER/ER LAE
AITAFREEHARE 2 KEEER
PERRELEEERTZE -

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position.
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Particulars of the Group's major properties held for sale as at 31 REBER _ZE——F+_A=+—HBHEL
December 2011 are as follows: EZEEMEFBLOT

Percentage

Gross floor area interest attributable

HIREMEE to the Group
Location Existing Use sq. m. EEE LR
2 RIE AR FHK Batt
30 units of THE ICON, 38 Conduit Road, Residential 1,953 100%
Mid-levels, Hong Kong
BEAFILTEBEISH F=

THE ICONHY301E B iz
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
the Company will be held at 12:15 p.m. on 7 June 2012 at Room
3201, 9 Queen’'s Road Central, Hong Kong for the following

purposes:

(1) To receive and consider the statement of accounts and the
reports of the directors and the auditors for the year ended
31 December 2011.

(2)  To re-elect the retiring directors and to fix the remuneration

of the directors of the Company.

(3)  To appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors to

fix their remuneration.

(4)  To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
amendments, the following resolutions as ordinary

resolutions (“Ordinary Resolutions”):

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

A.  “THAT there be granted to the directors of the
Company an unconditional general mandate to
repurchase shares of HK$0.05 each in the capital of
the Company and that the exercise by the directors
of the Company of all powers of the Company to
purchase shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
or on any other stock exchange on which the shares
of the Company may be listed and recognised by
the Securities and Futures Commission and the
Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in
accordance with all applicable laws, be and are hereby
generally and unconditionally approved, subject to the

following conditions:

(@)  such mandate shall not extend beyond the

Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined);

BBEARRETR-_ZE——F~AEAT
FH+oB+AEIPREBEFANEF 9573201
FRTRRAFERS - LEE T HIEE

(1) BEREEHZE-_ZT——F+_-A
—t+—HIEFEZRERRULESE
SMEFMZEEMIRE -

2) EMEBERIEENETARAES
M -

B) BERBMMEEXBREZSETREM
e -

4) ZEREHBEBEE(E®REDEI])T
JIZRBREREBRER ([ EBRZ

£]):

Wl PR

A TBREFTETARAIESES
—REEABRI AR BRED &G
fRE{E0.06 BT 2D - ARA
ARRAEFSKRRMEERZED
REHEMBRTITEARR —O)H#
NABARRRRBEERER S
FrAR AR ([BEAFT ) RAERE
1 78 73 32 5 i £ I 48 & 55
BEBEREZESME X PIHER
Z A - MEARIATRER S

(a) FZERETEIEEABHHE
(EEL T MNE
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(b)  the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of
the Company to be purchased by the directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue as at the date of passing this Resolution;

(c)  for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of passing this Resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of
the Company or any applicable laws of
Bermuda to be held; and

(i)  the revocation or variation of this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.”

B. “THAT there be granted to the directors of the
Company an unconditional general mandate to issue,
allot and deal with additional shares in the capital of
the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options including warrants, bonds and debentures
convertible into shares in respect thereof, subject to
the following conditions:

(@)  such mandate shall not extend beyond the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) save
that the directors of the Company may during
the Relevant Period make or grant offers,
agreements and options including warrants,
bonds and debentures convertible into shares
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which might require the exercise of such powers
after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally, to be allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) and issued by the
directors of the Company pursuant to sub-
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to
(i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) the
exercise of rights of subscription or conversion
attaching to any warrants issued by the Company
or any securities which are convertible into
shares of the Company; (i) any issue of shares in
the Company under any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue to officers and/or employees
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
of shares or rights to shares; and (iv) any scrip
dividend or similar arrangement providing for the
allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of
a dividend on shares in accordance with the bye-
laws of the Company in force from time to time;
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of
the Company in issue on the date of passing
this Resolution and the approval granted shall be

limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of passing this Resolution until whichever is

the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(b)

(c)
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B2 E%)
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RS R R B (R =
B4R B MR ol HAth 77 =
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(i) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of
the Company or any applicable laws of

Bermuda to be held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general

meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for
a period fixed by the directors of the Company to
holders of shares on the register of members of
the Company on a fixed record date in proportion
to their then holdings of such shares (subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the
directors of the Company may deem necessary
or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements
or having regard to any restriction or obligation
under the laws of, or the requirements of
any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, or in any territory outside, Hong

Kong)."”

C. "THAT conditional upon the passing of the
Resolutions Nos. A and B above, the aggregate
nominal amount of the shares in the capital of the
Company which are repurchased by the Company
pursuant to and in accordance with the Resolution
No. A above shall be added to the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company that may
be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted by the directors of the Company pursuant to

and in accordance with the Resolution No. B above.”
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To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
amendments, the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

“THAT the bye-laws of the Company be and are hereby

amended in the following manner:—

(a) Bye-law 1

For the definition of “clearing house”, by deleting
the words "“a recognised clearing house within the
meaning of Section 2 of the Securities and Futures
(Clearing Houses) Ordinance of Hong Kong or” in the

existing definition.

(b)  Bye-law 3(3)

By deleting the existing Bye-law 3(3) in its entirety and
substituting the same with the following as the new
Bye-law 3(3):

“3(3) Subject to compliance with the rules
and regulations of the Designated Stock
Exchange and any other relevant regulatory
authority, the Company may give financial
assistance for the purpose of orin
connection with a purchase made or to be
made by any person of any shares in the
Company.”

(c) Bye-law 44

By deleting the words “on every” in the second line
of the existing Bye-law 44 after the words “between
10 a.m. and 12 noon" and replacing the same with the
word “during” in substitution therefor and by deleting
the word “day” in the second line of the existing Bye-
law 44 after the word “business” and replacing the

same with the word “hours” in substitution therefor.
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(d) Bye-law 46 (d) #RAIE 46 &
By adding the following words after the words “or any RIEBMBIE 46 IEETT [EME
of his shares” in the first line of the existing Bye-law AR | FFRARMUATFA -
46:
“in any manner permitted by and in accordance with [LALIEERBH R ZMBEAETZ
the rules of the Designated Stock Exchange or”. EfRGHE] -
(e) Bye-law 51 (e) HMARIZE BT
(i) By deleting the words “an appointed newspaper (i) MBRBEEMAESIIKEE =
and, where applicable,” in the second line of the TIAESERAR] —F&
existing Bye-law 51 after the words “has been [EERER(MER)] &
given by advertisement in”. Fhk e
(i) By deleting the word “other” in the second line (i MERBEEBANESEE =
of the existing Bye-law 51 after the word “any”. TR —G& B &
?tx °©
(i) By deleting the word “and,” in the third line (i) MERBEEBANESEE=
of the existing Bye-law 51 after the word TimE] —Arl k1%
“newspapers”. Fhk e
(f) Bye-law 66 (f)  #HAIZE 661K
By deleting the existing Bye-law 66 in its entirety and MIBRIR B AAIZE 66 523 WA
substituting the same with the following as the new TR - tEAFTARRIE 66 14
Bye-law 66:
“66. (1)  Subject to any special rights or restrictions [66. (1) 1RMBIREBEMAI 2R
as to voting for the time being attached to E - FEERRGE R
any shares by or in accordance with these Bt 7 1 fr] 5 2 4 1
Bye-laws, at any general meeting on a HRFIZHRBRT - £
show of hands every Member present in FRREARE L W
person (or being a corporation, is present ARFHARRA A
by a representative duly authorised under BEFSEHE(Hm
Section 78 of the Act), or by proxy shall R AL - AR
have one vote and on a poll every Member NAEFETSIERE
present in person or by proxy or, in the case FRAERRRKERLEE)

140 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7



Notice of Annual General Meeting J§ 3 38 4F K &y i 1%

of a Member being a corporation, by its
duly authorised representative shall have
one vote for every fully paid share of which
he is the holder but so that no amount
paid up or credited as paid up on a share in
advance of calls or instalments is treated
for the foregoing purposes as paid up on
the share. A resolution put to the vote of
a meeting shall be decided by way of a
poll save that the chairman of the meeting
may in good faith, allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by
a show of hands in which case every
Member present in person (or being a
corporation, is present by a duly authorized
representative), or by proxy(ies) shall have
one vote provided that where more than
one proxy is appointed by a Member which
is a clearing house (or its nominee(s)), each
such proxy shall have one vote on a show
of hands. For purposes of this Bye-law,
procedural and administrative matters are
those that (i) are not on the agenda of the
general meeting or in any supplementary
circular that may be issued by the Company
to its Members; and (ii) relate to the
chairman’s duties to maintain the orderly
conduct of the meeting and/or allow the

business of the meeting to be properly
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and effectively dealt with, whilst allowing
all Members a reasonable opportunity to

express their views.

(2)  Where a show of hands is allowed, before
or on the declaration of the result of the

show of hands, a poll may be demanded:

(@) by at least three Members present
in person or in the case of a Member
being a corporation by its duly
authorised representative or by proxy
for the time being entitled to vote at

the meeting; or

(b) by a Member or Members present in
person or in the case of a Member
being a corporation by its duly
authorised representative or by
proxy and representing not less than
one-tenth of the total voting rights of
all Members having the right to vote

at the meeting; or

(c) by aMember or Members present in
person or in the case of a Member
being a corporation by its duly
authorised representative or by proxy
and holding shares in the Company

conferring a right to vote at the
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meeting being shares on which an
aggregate sum has been paid up
equal to not less than one-tenth of
the total sum paid up on all shares
conferring that right.

A demand by a person as proxy for a Member or in

the case of a Member being a corporation by its duly

authorised representative shall be deemed to be the

same as a demand by the Member.”

Bye-law 67

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

By deleting the words “Unless a poll is duly
demanded and the demand is not withdrawn”
in the first line of the existing Bye-law 67 at the
beginning and replacing the same with the words
“"Where a resolution is voted on by a show of

hands” in substitution therefor.

By deleting the word “fact” in the fifth line of the
existing Bye-law 67 after the words “evidence
of the” and replacing the same with the word
“facts"” in substitution therefor.

By adding the following sentence after the words
“against the resolution.” in the last line of the

existing Bye-law 67:

“The result of the poll shall be deemed to be the
resolution of the meeting. The Company shall
only be required to disclose the voting figures on
a poll if such disclosure is required by the rules of
the Designated Stock Exchange.”
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(h)  Bye-law 84(2)

By adding the following words after the words “the
clearing house (or its nominee)” in the last line of the
existing Bye-law 84(2):

“including, where a show of hands is allowed, the right

to vote individually on a show of hands”.

(i)  Bye-law 86(2)

(i) By deleting the words “subject to authorisation
by the Members in general meeting,” in the
second and third lines of the existing Bye-law
86(2) after the words “vacancy on the Board
or,”

(i) By deleting the word “so” in the fifth line of
the existing Bye-law 86(2) after the words "“Any
Director”.

(i) By adding the following words after the words
"appointed by the"” in the fifth line of the existing
Bye-law 86(2):

“Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of Members after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the

Board as an addition to the existing”.
(iv) By deleting the words “at that meeting” in the

last line of the existing Bye-law 86(2) after the
words “eligible for re-election”.
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Bye-law 87(1)

By deleting the existing Bye-law 87(1) in its entirety
and substituting the same with the following as the

new Bye-law 87(1):

“87(1) Notwithstanding any other provisions in the
Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three
(3), the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three

years.”

Bye-law 88

By deleting the existing Bye-law 88 in its entirety and
substituting the same with the following as the new

Bye-law 88:

“88 No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
Director at any general meeting unless a Notice
signed by a Member (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of
his intention to propose such person for election
and also a Notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the
Registration Office provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such Notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that
(if the Notices are submitted after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed

for such election) the period for lodgment of such
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Notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general

meeting.”

Bye-law 132(3)

By deleting the words “on every” in the second line of
the existing Bye-law 132(3) after the words “between
10:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon” and replacing the same
with the word “during” in substitution therefor and
by deleting the word “day” in the last line of the
existing Bye-law 132(3) after the word “business”
and replacing the same with the word “hours” in

substitution therefor.

Bye-laws 138

(i) By deleting the words “the aggregate of” in the
third line of the existing Bye-law 138 after the

words “thereby become less than”.

(i) By deleting the words “and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts” in the third
and last lines of the existing Bye-law 138 after

the words “its liabilities”.

Bye-laws 154(2)

(i) By deleting the words “a retiring” in the first line
of the existing Bye-law 154(2) after the words
“a person, other than” and replacing the same
with the words “an incumbent” in substitution
therefor.
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(i) By deleting the words “fourteen (14)" in the
fourth line of the existing Bye-law 154(2) after
the words “has been given not less than” and
replacing the same with the words “twenty-one
(21)" in substitution therefor.

(iiiy By deleting the word “retiring " in the last line of

the existing Bye-law 154(2) after the words “any

such notice to the” and replacing the same with
in substitution therefor.

the word “incumbent”

(o) Bye-laws 159

By deleting the word “so” in the twelve line of the
existing Bye-law 159 after the word “If"” and replacing
the same with the words “the auditing standards of a

country or jurisdiction other than Bermuda are used” in

substitution therefor.

By Order of the Board
Winfoong International Limited

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 April 2012

Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a

member of the Company.

Concerning Resolution No. (4)B above, the directors of the Company wish
to state that they have no immediate plans to issue any new shares of the
Company but approval is being sought from the members as a general
mandate for the purpose of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange (“the Listing Rules”).

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 5 June 2012 to 7
June 2012, both days inclusive, for the purpose of establishing entitlement of
shareholders to vote at the meeting. During this period, no transfer of shares
will be effected. All transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share

certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch registrar in Hong
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Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2012.

4. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, at any general meeting, a

resolution put to the vote of the meeting must be taken by poll.

5. In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong,
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert and Leung Wing Ning will retire by rotation and, being

eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

6. The translation into Chinese language of this notice is for reference only. In

case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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